
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 

Southern Area 
Planning Committee 

 
 
 
Date: 
 

Tuesday 12 January 2021 

Time: 
 

5.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Being held virtually by Microsoft Teams. The public can listen to a 
live stream here: 
http://www.audiominutes.com/p/player/player.html?userid=tvbc 
 

 
 
 
For further information or enquiries please contact: 
Caroline Lovelock - 01264 368014 
clovelock@testvalley.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Legal and Democratic Service 
Test Valley Borough Council, 

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, 
Andover, Hampshire, 

SP10 3AJ 
www.testvalley.gov.uk 

 
 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME 

If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting. 

 

http://www.audiominutes.com/p/player/player.html?userid=tvbc
http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


 
 

 
Membership of Southern Area Planning Committee 

 
MEMBER  WARD 
 
Councillor M Cooper (Chairman) Romsey Tadburn 

Councillor M Hatley (Vice-Chairman) Ampfield & Braishfield 

Councillor G Bailey Blackwater 

Councillor P Bundy Chilworth, Nursling & Rownhams 

Councillor J Burnage Romsey Cupernham 

Councillor A Dowden Valley Park 

Councillor C Dowden North Baddesley 

Councillor N Gwynne Romsey Cupernham 

Councillor A Johnston Mid Test 

Councillor J Parker Romsey Tadburn 

Councillor C Thom Valley Park 

Councillor A Ward Mid Test 

Councillor A Warnes North Baddesley 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021



 
 

 
Southern Area Planning Committee 

 
Tuesday 12 January 2021 

 
AGENDA 

 
The order of these items may change as a result of members 

of the public wishing to speak 
 
 

1   Apologies 
 

 

2   Public Participation 
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

4   Urgent Items 
 

 

5   Minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2020 
 

 

6   Information Notes 
 

4 - 9 

7   20/01045/FULLS - 19.05.2020 
 

10 - 50 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: Land adjacent to Woodpeckers, Cupernham Lane, 
Romsey, SO51 7LE ROMSEY EXTRA 
CASE OFFICER: Mr Paul Goodman 
 

 

8   20/02880/FULLS - 19.11.2020 
 

51 - 57 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: 22 Lansdowne Close, Romsey, SO51 8FQ 
ROMSEY TOWN 
CASE OFFICER: Miss Ash James 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021



 

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

INFORMATION NOTES 
 
 

Availability of Background Papers 
 
Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the 
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter.  Requests to inspect the 
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to 
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager.  Although there 
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed 
on the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to 
the Head of Planning and Building. 
 
Reasons for Committee Consideration 
 
The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in 
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning 
Committees and this will happen if any of the following reasons apply: 
 

(a) Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft 
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where 
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended 
for approval. 
 

(b) Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing, 
with reasons and within the Application Publicity Expiry Date, that they be 
submitted to Committee. A Member can withdraw this request at any time 
prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination under 
delegated powers. 

 
(c) Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in 

which the Council holds an interest, for its own developments except for the 
approval of minor developments. 
 

(d) Applications where the Head of Planning and Building Services recommends 
refusal of an application solely on the basis of failure to achieve nutrient 
neutrality where a Ward Member requests in writing, with reasons, within 72 
hours of notification of the recommendation for refusal that they be submitted 
to Committee for determination. A Member can withdraw this request at any 
time prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination 
under delegated powers. 

 
(e) To determine applications (excluding applications for advertisement consent, 

certificates of lawfulness, listed building consent, and applications resulting 
from the withdrawal by condition of domestic permitted development rights; 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 4

ITEM 6



 

 

 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as 
amended) on which a material planning objection(s) has been received within 
the Application Publicity Expiry Date and which cannot be resolved by 
negotiation or through the imposition of conditions and where the officer’s 
recommendation is for approval, following consultation with the Ward 
Members, the latter having the right to request that the application be 
reported to Committee for decision. 

 
Public Speaking at the Meeting 
 
The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public, 
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on 
applications.  Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building 
Services or from Democratic Services at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, Weyhill 
Road, Andover.  Copies are usually sent to all those who have made 
representations.  Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Democratic Services 
within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to address the 
Committee. 
 
Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors on the Area 
Committee who have personal interests or where a Member has pre-determined 
his/her position on the relevant application, three minutes for the Parish Council, 
three minutes for all objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for 
the applicant/agent and relevant Ward Members who are not Committee Members 
will have a maximum of five minutes.  Where there are multiple supporters or 
multiple objectors wishing to speak the Chairman may limit individual speakers to 
less than three minutes with a view to accommodating multiple speakers within the 
three minute time limit.  Speakers may be asked questions by the Members of the 
Committee, but are not permitted to ask questions of others or to join in the debate.  
Speakers are not permitted to circulate or display plans, photographs, illustrations or 
textual material during the Committee meeting as any such material should be sent 
to the Members and officers in advance of the meeting to allow them time to 
consider the content. 
 
Content of Officer’s Report 
 
It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the 
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with 
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a 
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted.  However, the 
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations 
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full 
response must ask to consult the application file. 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 5



 

 
Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions 
 
The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time 
the report was prepared.  A different recommendation may be made at the meeting 
should circumstances change and the officer’s recommendations may not be 
accepted by the Committee. 
 
In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the 
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice 
Chairman.  Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Rules of Procedure.  A binding decision is made only when the Committee has 
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and, 
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the 
Council. 
 
Conditions and Reasons for Refusal 
 
Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during 
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application 
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application 
recommended for refusal.  In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is 
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being 
made. 
 
Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation 
 
For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to 
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section 
106 agreement).  The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land, 
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a 
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority. 
 
New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure 
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new 
development and its future occupants.  Typically, such requirements include 
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing 
fields and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport. 
 
Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to 
grant permission subject to the listed conditions.  However, it should be noted that 
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning 
application determination date to allow the application to be issued.  If this does not 
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within 
the timescale set to deal with the application. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 6



 

Deferred Applications 
 
Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows: 
 
* The applicant may choose to withdraw the application.  No further action 

would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed. 
 
* Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or 

amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for 
consultation on amendments. 

 
* The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments. 
 
* The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the 

proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.  
These site visits are not public meetings. 

 
Visual Display of Plans and Photographs 
 
Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its 
surroundings.  The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from 
Ordnance Survey and to scale.  The other plans are not a complete copy of the 
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced 
from large size paper plans.  If further information is needed or these plans are 
unclear please refer to the submitted application on the Council’s website.  Plans 
displayed at the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to 
the written reports. 
 
Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the 
officers usually take these.  Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or 
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers. 
 
Human Rights 
 
The European Convention on Human Rights” (“ECHR”) was brought into English 
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000. 
 
The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR. 
 
There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions: 
 
* Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property. 
 
* Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life. 
 
It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in 
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these 
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and 
must go no further than necessary. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 7



 

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and 
against competing private interests.  Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in 
the decision making processes of the Committee.  However, Members must 
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all 
planning applications and enforcement action. 
 
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC) 
 
The Council has a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 
2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, 
so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of 
conserving biodiversity". 
 
It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process 
leading up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan.  Further 
regard is had in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the 
biodiversity checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental 
Statements and any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on 
biodiversity aspects of the proposals.  Provided any recommendations arising from 
these processes are conditioned as part of any grant of planning permission (or 
included in reasons for refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure 
that biodiversity interest has been conserved, as far as practically possible, will be 
considered to have been met. 
 
Other Legislation 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan for the 
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016), and ‘made’ 
Neighbourhood Plans.  Material considerations are defined by Case Law and 
includes, amongst other things, draft Development Plan Documents (DPD), 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other relevant guidance including 
Development Briefs, Government advice, amenity considerations, crime and 
community safety, traffic generation and safety. 

On the 19th February 2019 the Government published a revised National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous 
NPPF published in  2018.  The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning 
decisions.   

So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Decisions 
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This does not 
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision 
making.  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date 
development plan, permission should not usually be granted.  Local planning 
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan, 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 8



 

but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed.   

For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
means: 
 

 Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development 
plan without delay; or 

 Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting 
permission unless: 
o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or assets 

of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or  

o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the revised 
NPPF when taken as a whole.   

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were 
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF.  Due weight should be given to 
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the 
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given).   

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. 20/01045/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 19.05.2020 
 APPLICANT Stratland Estates Limited 
 SITE Land adjacent to Woodpeckers, Cupernham Lane, 

Romsey, SO51 7LE,  ROMSEY EXTRA  
 PROPOSAL Erection of 9 dwellings, with access, landscaping, and 

associated works, following site clearance. 
 AMENDMENTS Revised Plans received 17/11/20. Additional 

information received 09/07/20, 18/09/20, 23/10/20 & 
17/11/20.  

 CASE OFFICER Mr Paul Goodman 
  

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee because it 

is contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft Development Plan or other 
statement of approved planning policy, adverse third party representations 
have been received and the recommendation is for approval.     

 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The application site is a broadly square shaped parcel of land situated to the 

western side of Cupernham Lane and outside of the settlement boundary of 
Romsey. The site is situated to the north of three existing bungalows the 
nearest of which (Woodpeckers) is situated on the southern boundary. The site 
is bordered to the west by ongoing residential development and to the north by 
a site which benefits from planning permission but has not yet been 
commenced.  

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 The application proposes the erection of 9 dwellings, with access, landscaping, 

and associated works, following site clearance.  
 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 16/02193/AGNS - Agricultural notification for the erection of an agricultural 

barn. Prior Approval Not Required. 12.10.2016.  
 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Planning Policy & Transport (Policy) – Objection; 

 The proposal is contrary to the Development Plan. However, 
consideration would need to be given as to whether there are material 
considerations that justify the proposal as a departure from the 
Development Plan, including the planning history of the site. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 10

ITEM 7



5.2 Planning & Building (Trees) – No objection, subject to condition.  
  

5.3 Planning & Building (Landscape) – No objection, subject to condition.  
  

5.4 Ecology – Further comments awaited in relation to off-site mitigation plan. 
 

5.5 HCC Highways – No objection, subject to condition. 
  

5.6 Housing & Environmental Health (Housing) – No objection. 
  

5.7 Natural England – No objection, subject to s106 to secure nitrate mitigation.  
 
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 05.01.2021 
6.1 Romsey Extra Parish Council – Objection; 

 Development in the countryside contrary to the RLP Policy COM2 
without any overriding need. 

 Loss of the green corridor between the Abbotswood Ecology site and 
Fishlake Meadows which will have a significant effect on the ecology 
and the rural feel of the area. 

 The design and layout are bland and suburban inappropriate for the 
location. 

 The impact on ecology due to loss of trees. It is important to try and 
retain the rural feel of the area despite the development. 

 
6.2 Romsey & District Society (Natural Environment) – Objection; 

 No evidence has been provided to indicate it is essential for the 
proposal to be located in the countryside. On this basis, the proposal 
does not accord with policy COM2.  The location does not appear to be 
sustainable; the Transport Assessment only allows for travel by private 
car and there is no suggestion that journeys could be made by any 
other means. 

 The site is an infill closing off the only remaining green 
corridor/ecological network route between the Abbotswood conservation 
area and Fishlake/Ashley Meadows nature reserve. It also introduces 
increased pressure on the nature reserves. It is therefore in 
contravention of Policy E5 of the Revised Local Plan. 

 With regard to the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, it is stated that 
further surveys are required with regard to bats and reptiles. However, 
there will be a loss of commuting and foraging habitat for bats, and this 
is made worse by the cumulative effect of so many piecemeal 
developments in the area. 

 We note the presence of non-native invasive plants including variegated 
yellow archangel, Himalayan Balsam and notably, Japanese knotweed. 
These will have to be dealt with appropriately to avoid any further 
spread.  

 In respect of the layout, there is a large area of hard standing visible 
from the entrance, which will have an urbanising effect.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 11



  We also note that plots 7, 8 and 9 have parking spaces not adjoining the 
houses, and those of plots 1, 2, 3 and 4 have a footpath between them 
and the relevant houses. This will be a barrier to the use of car charging 
points. It is important to make charging of electric vehicles possible for 
the future. 

 No examination or mitigation for nitrate neutrality appears to have been 
carried out. 

 
6.3 Romsey & District Society (Planning Committee) – Comment; 

 It is noted that this development of 9 houses is in a location surrounded 
by other recent developments. The concept of a small number of 
houses clustered in a small development is to be encouraged. However 
the scheme is disappointing and does not seem to satisfy the stated 
objectives of providing “an inclusive mix of high quality houses”. 

 The scheme is somewhat bland and visually monotonous when 
approaching from the estate entrance. 

 The layout of the units grouped around an extensive hardstanding for 
parked cars lacks any hint of enclosure and presents no sense of place. 

 The spaces allocated for car parking are not adjacent to each of the 
properties and visually gives the impression of a central carpark rather 
than ones assigned to each dwelling. 

 The arrangement of the two 4 bedroom properties with their attractive 
entrance spur roads, well-proportioned gardens and attractive views 
across to the Fishlake Meadow nature reserve has been achieved to the 
detriment of the arrangement of the 2 and 3 bedroom properties. 

 
6.4 CPRE Hampshire, Test Valley District Group – Objection; 

 The site falls outside of the settlement boundary for Romsey and would 
therefore constitute development in the countryside. This would clearly 
be contrary to policy COM2 of the adopted local plan. 

 We can think of no material considerations that would justify giving 
permission in this particular case. TVBC has an adequate 5-year 
housing supply and the local plan is not out of date. The borough 
always needs affordable housing but none is proposed and even it were 
we do not believe it would be correct to provide unnecessary market 
housing just to facilitate one or two affordable dwellings. 

 The site is the one remaining open gap on the western side of 
Cupernham Lane and, as such, provides a green corridor between 
Fishlake Meadows and the open and the ecologically diverse and 
important area on the east side of Cupernham Lane. Loss of this 
corridor would be to the detriment of the ecology of the area and would 
also spoil its rural look and feel. These effects would be compounded by 
the loss of many trees on the site. 

6.5 3 representations of Objection received; 

 Maps and reports contained within this application do not appear to take 
into account the ongoing residential development that borders on this 
site. 

 Lack of ecological and wildlife assessment. The land is the last wildlife 
corridor for those birds and animals using the Fishlake Meadows site. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 12



  
 

 Contrary to Policy COM2 development outside of settlement.  

 Developments at Fishlake Meadows, and further south on Cupernham 
Lane gave a sum of money, and the Fishlake Meadows, to Test Valley, 
as part of the agreement to get Planning Permission for these first two 
Developments. In this case, there does not seem to be any equivalent 
benefit to Test Valley for allowing this new Development.  

 No housing land supply justification.  

 The site of this Proposed Development is the last undeveloped area on 
this west side of Cupernham Lane. If the Development goes ahead, 
there will be a continuous ‘urban’ barrier between the Fishlake 
Meadows Nature Reserve and the lands east of Cupernham Lane.  

 Further investigation of potential contamination required.  

 Any dangerous trees could be removed without the need for planning 
permission.  

 Concern with regard to the drainage strategy.  

 Essential that the proposals contain details of how invasive plant 
species will be controlled.  

 Lack of amenities and reliance on car for transport.  

 Impact on water supply pressure and capacity.  

 Overdevelopment with little environmental enhancement.  

 Cumulative development has resulted in adverse noise and air pollution 
in residential areas due to congestion.  

 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
  

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP) 
COM2 (Settlement Hierarchy), E1 (High Quality Development in the Borough), 
E2 (Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough), 
E5 (Biodiversity), E7 (Water Management), E8 (Pollution), E9 (Heritage), 
LHW1 (Public Open Space), LHW4 (Amenity), T1 (Managing Movement), T2 
(Parking Standard). 
  

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 
Affordable Housing 
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 
New Forest SPA Interim Framework  

 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

The main planning considerations are the principle for development, housing 
land supply, affordable housing requirements, character of the area, highways, 
trees, protected species & ecology, amenity, archaeology and drainage.  
  

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 13



8.1 Principle of development 
The application site is, for the purposes of planning policy, within the 
countryside. The application site is not allocated for development in the 
currently saved policies of the Local Plan. The principle planning policy of the 
TVBLP therefore is policy COM2. Planning policy COM2 seeks to restrict 
development outside of settlement boundaries unless identified within the 
specified policies as being appropriate or where a countryside location is 
required.  
  

8.2 It is not considered that the proposal is of a type appropriate in the countryside 
(criterion a) or that there is an essential need for the proposal to be located in 
the countryside (criterion b). A number of representations have drawn upon the 
fact that the site is in the countryside and therefore in accordance with policy 
COM2, there is a presumption against the grant of planning permission. 
However, planning law requires other material considerations to be taken into 
account and weighed against the departure from the policy of the Development 
Plan. These are addressed in the following paragraphs.  
  

8.3 The National Planning Policy Framework  
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is a material consideration in 
the assessment of planning applications. The NPPF identifies the three 
dimensions of sustainable development which should be taken into account, 
i.e. social, economic and environmental roles. The purpose of the planning 
system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. For the 
assessment of planning applications, this means approving development 
proposals that accord with the development plan without delay. As noted 
above, the principle of additional housing in this countryside location is 
considered to be contrary to Policy COM2. The site was not allocated for 
development within the Revised Local Plan as an allocation site.  
  

8.4 Housing Land Supply  
Section 5 of the NPPF relates to housing. Paragraph 73 of the NPPF requires 
the Council to demonstrate a minimum of 5 years housing land supply (HLS) 
with a 5% buffer. An assessment of the HLS position as at 30 November 2020 
has been undertaken. This uses the housing requirement established in policy 
COM1 and has regard to the conclusions of the Inspector’s Report on the 
Examination of the Local Plan. The HLS position for Southern Test Valley, as 
at 1 April 2019 is 5.26 years of supply. This is reported against a target of 5.00 
years. The existence of a five year HLS enables the Council to give weight to 
the policies of the adopted plan (in the context of footnote 7). The 
demonstration of a five year HLS does not in itself cap development and any 
application must be assessed on its merits. 
 

8.5 Relationship with the settlement boundary and adjacent planning 
permissions 
The settlement boundary for Romsey is situated to the south of, but does not 
contain the application site. However the site is adjacent, and in close 
proximity to, a number of other planning permissions.   
  

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 14



8.6 Planning permission for residential development at Oxlease Farm to the 
southwest of the site (14/00204/OUTS) is and now substantially complete. The 
sites immediately to the north (South of Wren’s Corner, 16/01857/FULLS & 
17/00915/OUTS, land west of Cupernham Lane) benefit from permission for 
residential development which has not yet commenced. The land adjacent the 
site to the west also benefits from permission for 73 dwellings 
(17/02183/OUTS) and is currently under construction. In addition further 
developments benefit from permission in the vicinity including 21 dwellings 
under application 16/01857/FULLS which was allowed on appeal. In 
determining that appeal the Inspector drew reference to both the neighbouring 
permissions and the Inspectors decision at the Abbotsford site. In addition to 
the examples above further residential development has been permitted in this 
vicinity, including sites along Cupernham Lane (e.g. 15/01832/OUTS, Land 
west of Baroona and Granton (17/0082/FULLS & 18/03223/FULLS).  
 

8.7 Abbotsford Appeal Decision 
The appeal decision in relation to a development site at Abbotsford constitutes 
a material consideration relevant to the determination of the application. The 
appeal decision relates to land at Abbotsford, Braishfield Road in Romsey 
(15/03137/OUTS), and is quoted here as an example of how the Planning 
Inspectorate balanced the various issues that are comparably similar with the 
current proposal. This appeal was allowed on 24 November 2017. 
  

8.8 The appeal decision (for 15/03137/OUTS) recognised that the scheme did not 
accord with policy COM2, a policy that forms an intrinsic part of the spatial 
strategy, and that this was not a technical or minor breach (see paragraphs 20, 
21 and 23 of the Decision Notice). Paragraph 22 also considers the status of 
the settlement boundaries in the context of development that was permitted 
outside the settlement boundaries prior to them being finalised within the 
Revised Local Plan – it recognises that future plans may review such 
boundaries but it is not for the appeal Inspector to anticipate the outcome of 
such a process. 
  

8.9 The appeal decision considers the weight that should be attributed to the 
departure from the Development Plan, having regard to the specific context of 
the site (including the relationship with existing development, Ganger Farm 
(under construction), and the countryside, as well as the suburban context) 
and the aim of the policy (COM2), this is then weighed up with other material 
considerations including social, economic and environmental factors 
(paragraphs 23 – 25, and 37 – 44). For Abbotsford, the Inspector considered 
that the material considerations indicated a decision other than in accordance 
with the development plan was acceptable.  
  

8.10 Paragraph 23 of the Inspectors report states; 
 
“However, it is clear that the aim of that policy is to direct development to the 
most sustainable locations and in so doing to reconcile the need for 
development with the need to protect the countryside. The appeal scheme 
would be located very close to the existing settlement and would benefit from 
easy access to existing facilities and services therein. Further, it is divided from  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 15



 
the countryside by the large Ganger Farm development and is in a generally 
suburban context. Those matters, together, significantly limit the appeal site’s 
contribution to the countryside. Whilst I acknowledge RLP Policy COM2 forms 
an intrinsic part of the spatial strategy for the RLP, in the circumstances of this 
appeal, the proposed development would not materially undermine its spatial 
strategy or the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. This limits the 
weight that I attach to the development plan conflict that I have identified.” 
  

8.11 As with many of the other developments on Cupernham Lane the application 
site shares a number of significant comparisons with the Abbotsford site being 
situated in a newly suburban context and separation from the wider 
countryside by the development of the Oxlease site. In this case the 
comparisons are compelling and considered to be materially significant in the 
determination of the application and also informed the decision of the Inspector 
on the land to the south of the application site.    
 

8.12 Conclusion on the Principle of Development 
The planning history in the vicinity of the site, particularly that work on the 
Oxlease site is substantially complete, are considered to represent a material 
consideration to which significant weight in the determination of this application 
can be given and should be taken into account. The planning permissions in 
the vicinity along with the existing residential development adjacent to the site 
form the context for the site and the proposal. As a result of the adjacent 
development the application site is now enclosed by residential development.  
  

8.13 Whilst technically within the countryside the existing relationships are 
considered to be a strong material consideration in favour of the development. 
These matters have been considered by multiple Planning Inspectors who 
have reached similar conclusions on the principle of development in the area – 
notably which quoted in the Abbottsford appeal referred to above. As a result it 
is considered that the grant of planning permission in this case as a departure 
from the Local Plan is justified. 
 

8.14 Affordable Housing  
Romsey Extra is classed as an undesignated area and therefore, under Policy 
COM7 applies. Policy COM7 states that the Council will negotiate on housing 
sites of 11-14 dwellings (or sites of 0.34 – 0.49ha) for up to 30% of dwellings to 
be affordable. Therefore based upon the number of proposed dwellings (9), the 
trigger for Affordable Housing has not been met, and therefore no provision of 
Affordable Housing will be required. However, the site size of land measures 
0.4ha, and this does fall within the above parameters. The above area of land 
is broadly equivalent to the size of site (excluding constraints) reasonably 
expected to deliver the number of dwellings in that step of the sliding scale, 
assuming an average density of development.  The purpose of the equivalent 
site area threshold is to avoid any applicant being able to deliberately reduce  
the number of dwellings below a threshold purely in order to reduce the 
amount of affordable housing able to be sought, when in planning terms a 
higher number of dwellings could be appropriately accommodated.  
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 16



8.15 In this case, as is discussed in more details below, the site is subject to 
significant tree constraints which have reduced the developable area below the 
threshold. In this case it is not considered that there has been any deliberate 
effort to artificially reduce the number of dwellings below the threshold. As is 
discussed in more detail below the density of the site is comparable to 
neighbouring sites and the increase in numbers to reach he threshold of 11 
dwellings to trigger affordable housing would likely have an adverse impact on 
the character of the site and/or protected trees and ecology. As a result the 
number of dwellings falls below the trigger and the developable area falls 
below the area threshold and the provision of Affordable is not triggered. 
 

8.16 Character and Appearance  
Currently the site has a treed boundary with limited views through the site 
towards the ongoing residential development to the west. Cupernham Lane 
has several parcels of mixed open/treed land retaining a rural edge to Romsey 
North. There are however, existing permitted developments at several areas 
close to Cupernham lane, and as such the cumulative impact of all these 
developments on the Landscape Character and visual amenity effects also 
needs to be taken into. The existing development at Oxlease Meadows, and 
the more recently permitted developments, would therefore form part of the 
view from Cupernham lane in time.   
  

8.17 The adjacent developments are now substantially complete and have changed 
the views across the valley floor when viewed from the elevated Cupernham 
Lane. The application site being situated on the higher northern end of 
Cupernham Lane does not facilitate views west over the valley floor. Any views 
through the site will be of the adjacent residential development and the 
woodland beyond. The density of the development is consistent with the 
planning permissions already granted nearby. Furthermore existing belt of 
more mature roadside tree planting will be retained where possible and 
strengthened where not. 
  

8.18 The western side of Cupernham Lane has historically been characterised by 
sporadic existing detached properties in large plots. However there are a 
number of extant permissions for development of a mixture of detached, semi-
detached and terraced properties on adjacent plots resulting in a diverse 
mixture in the built form of the immediate area which would be replicated within 
the application site. 
 

8.19 The detailed designs propose a number of different house types, incorporating 
a mix of materials, creating interest within the resulting street scenes. 
Objections have raised concern that the proposed designs are unsuitable. 
Whilst the house designs are more contemporary that those approved on the 
adjacent sites, it is considered that a subtly different character to a smaller 
scheme in the context of Cupernham Lane will not detract from the character 
of the area. Whilst the detailing is more contemporary the scale and materials 
proposed are more traditional and in keeping with the surrounding residential 
development and ensure a sympathetic appearance to the schemes in views 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 17



 
 
through the site to nearby developments. Subject to suitable materials, which 
are controlled by condition, the design or the proposed units is considered 
appropriate in relation to existing properties in the vicinity and new 
developments.  
  

8.20 The proposed development is considered to reflect the form and density of the 
neighbouring developments. Whilst views of the new dwellings will be possible 
from Cupernham Lane they will be predominantly obscured by the retained 
woodland and seen in the context of the development to the west. Whilst the 
proposals will have some impact it is not considered to be detrimental to a 
degree that would justify refusal of the application and as a result the 
proposals are considered to comply with policies E1 and E2 of the local plan. 
 

8.21 Landscape Character 
Following the submission of amended plans and revised planting strategy the 
Landscape Officer has raised no objection to the proposed development. 
However, as a result of the tree and ecology buffers, the scheme includes 
some significant areas outside of private dwellings that will need to be 
maintained in order to ensure that it remains an attractive feature. 
Management of these areas is secured in the legal agreement and details of 
hard and soft landscaping is secured by condition.  
 

8.22 Arboriculture 
The whole site is included within area A16 of TPO.TVBC.111. The area order 
only protects those trees present at the time the TPO was made.  In this case 
that is October of 1982; only the large mature trees (found on both the eastern 
and western boundaries) would have been present and it is only they that 
remain subject to protection afforded by the TPO.   
 

8.23 The application was subject to substantial pre-application discussions in 
relation to trees given the TPO and relevance to developable area in the 
context of affordable housing discussed above. It is apparent that the large 
mature Poplar trees on the Cupernham Road frontage have at some stage 
been affected by wind action and have moved in the ground.  One tree has 
failed, split in the past and been cut. The remaining large Poplars have a short 
or very short safe useful life expectancy and cannot now be regarded as long 
term features. The Arboricultural Officers advice is that they are not trees that 
can be safely incorporated into a new residential development.  
 

8.24 Rather than see these trees themselves as constraints for development, the 
space they occupy should be seen as an opportunity for replacement planting. 
Sufficient space is therefore required on the eastern part of the site to allow 
new replacement trees to be long lived and have the space and opportunity to 
grow and develop naturally to their climax size providing legacy trees for the 
future.   
 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 18



8.25 The submitted layout provides adequate protection space for those trees to be 
retained and space for replacement planting to mature. The proposed gardens 
are of a suitable size and layout to avoid future pressure on trees. Details of 
new service routes are to be secured to ensure that they are located outside 
the Root Protection Areas (RPA) of the retained trees. In addition detailed 
planting plans are required by condition to ensure adequate space for a new 
tree planting to reach their potential without causing proximity issues or 
blocking light.  
 

8.26 Subject to the required conditions the proposed development is considered to 
have no adverse impact on landscape character or protected trees and 
complies with Policy E2 of the TVBRLP 2016.  
  

8.27 Highways 
Representations have raised concerns with regard to the extent and visibility of 
parking and turning space. Whilst the visibility of parking areas has been 
reduced by the revised landscape proposals the turning area remains 
necessary to accommodate a refuse vehicle. Whilst on plan this area appear 
large, as is illustrated by the street view plans views of the extent of the turning 
space will not be available from public vantage points on Cupernham Lane.   
 

8.28 The Highways Officer initially advised that a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA) 
be provided in support of the application. The applicant has commissioned and 
undertaken the relevant audit. The findings detailed a number of minor issues 
including the requirement for road centreline markings, vegetation details 
within the proposed visibility splays, pedestrian footways, access design and 
dropped kerb provision. The access has been re-designed in accordance with 
the recommendations of the RSA and the Highways Officer has raised no 
further concern.  
 

8.29 A condition has been applied to ensure the retention of the required visibility 
splays. The proposed parking arrangement would meet the required standard 
and, subject to further conditions requiring the retention of parking and 
restricting the location of any gates, the proposed scheme is considered to 
have no significant detrimental impact on highways or pedestrian safety and 
accords with the relevant T policies of the TVBRLP 2016.  
 

8.30 Biodiversity & Protected Species 
As is indicated in the submitted representations the initial submission was not 
supported by full ecological information and this concern was echoed by the 
Ecology Officer. Following initial concern raised by the Ecology Officer the 
application has been supported by revised and additional ecological survey 
work and biodiversity enhancement measures.  
The Ecology Officer has advised that whilst a good number of enhancement 
features are included within the development there would be a net loss of 
biodiversity within the site itself. As a result further off-site mitigation is to be 
secured. 
 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 19



8.31 New Forest SPA 
The development will result in a net increase in residential dwellings within 
13.6km of the New Forest SPA. This distance defines the zone identified by 
recent research where new residents would be considered likely to visit the 
New Forest. The New Forest SPA supports a range of bird species that are 
vulnerable to impacts arising from increases in recreational use of the Forest 
that result from new housing development. While clearly one new house on its 
own would not result in any significant effects, it has been demonstrated 
through research, and agreed by Natural England that any net increase (even 
single or small numbers of dwellings) would have a likely significant effect on 
the SPA when considered in combination with other plans and projects. 
  

8.32 To address this issue, Test Valley Borough Council has adopted a strategy 
whereby a scale of developer contributions has been agreed that would fund 
the delivery of measures to address these issues. With respect to the New 
Forest, a new strategic area of alternative recreational open space is being 
delivered that would offer the same sort of recreational opportunities as those 
offered by the New Forest. 
  

8.33 Solent and Southampton Water SPA – Solent Neutrality 
There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the 
water environment across the Solent, with evidence of eutrophication at some 
designated sites. An Integrated Water Management Study for South 
Hampshire was commissioned by the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire 
(PUSH) Authorities to examine the delivery of development growth in relation 
to legislative and government policy requirements for designated sites and 
wider biodiversity. This work has identified that there is uncertainty regarding 
whether any new housing development does not contribute to net increases in 
nutrients entering these designated sites. 
  

8.34 As such, the advice from Natural England is that the applicants for 
development proposals resulting in a net increase in dwellings are required to 
submit the nitrogen budget for the development to demonstrate no likely 
significant effect on the European designated sites due to the increase in 
waste water from the new housing.  
 

8.35 The applicant has submitted information that quantifies the nutrient budget for 
the proposal, and a proposed mitigation strategy. The proposed strategy 
comprises the removal of off-site land measuring 1.19ha, from agricultural 
production. This land is located in Fullerton. To secure the future use of the 
land in perpetuity the recommendation includes provision for a legal agreement 
to be completed preventing the use of the land for agricultural production, and 
for suitable management, to ensure the anticipated benefits to the Solent are 
realised.  
  

8.36 Through securing the implementation of this off-site mitigation the applicant 
has the projected nutrient budget will be negative. Subject to the required legal 
agreement the development will therefore not result in adverse effects on the 
Solent designated site through water quality impacts arising from nitrate 
generation.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 20



8.37 Bats 
In accordance with the Ecology Officers advice a further inspection of the tree 
previously identified as having moderate bat roost potential (T46) has been 
completed, using a cherry picker to conduct an at height assessment of the 
features. This survey concluded that the vertical crack in the bark is superficial 
and therefore the tree can be classified as having low bat roost potential, and 
therefore does not require further emergence/re-entry surveys, providing a 
precautionary approach is adopted when felling. 
 

8.38 The Ecology Officer has also raised concern over the loss of bat foraging and 
commuting habitat locally as a result of the proposed development. Further 
planting has been proposed as part of the revised landscaping scheme and the 
applicant has drawn reference to the large area of additional woodland planting 
secured as part of the nitrate mitigation. However there would will still be a net 
loss in foraging and commuting habitat locally. The Ecology Officer raised 
concern that this would impact on the Mottisfont Bats SAC. Whilst the extent of 
the woodland planting secured as part of the nitrate mitigation is larger than 
the application site itself it is a considerable distance from the application site, 
and outside of the identified Mottisfont Bats SAC foraging area. In order to 
address this concern, following further discussion with the Ecology Officer, the 
applicants have proposed enhancement of an area of land to the west of the 
site and to the north of the Oxlease development. It is considered that there is 
an opportunity for significant biodiversity enhancement of the land, which sits 
between the site and the water course to the west and contains a pond. 
However the details are under consideration and members will be updated 
further at SAPC.  
 

8.39 Given the presence of light sensitive species present on site (i.e. barbastelle 
bats), the Ecology Officer has also advised that a suitable lighting strategy is 
submitted to ensure dark corridors can be achieved across the site.  
 

8.40 Great crested newts and reptile translocation 
This area of suitable GCN habitat is one of the ecological corridors connecting 
the larger populations of GCN to the east of the site with suitable habitats and 
populations to the west of Cupernham Lane. It is therefore important that this 
ecological corridor is functionally maintained to prevent populations of GCN 
becoming isolated. Similar to the situation with bat habitat the additional 
mitigation land is proposed to offer enhanced connectivity with the 
translocation site which is situated between the application site and the 
proposed enhancement area. Again the detail of the scheme remain under 
discussion and members will be updated at SAPC.  
 

8.41 Invasive species 
Section 5.4.2 of the Ecological Impact Assessment (ECOSA, September 2020) 
stipulates that the removal of non-native species on site, including Japanese 
knotweed, Himalayan Balsam and variegated yellow archangel, will be 
conducted prior to the commencement of works. Previous comments from 
county ecologists stipulated that ‘a management plan for the eradication of this 
species will be required’. This advice has been echoed by the Ecology Officer 
and therefore a condition has been applied to secure the details of an 
eradication programme.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 21



 
8.42 Water management 

The 2016 Local Plan includes a requirement in policy E7 to achieve a water 
consumption standard of no more than 100 litres per person today.  This 
reflects the requirements of part G2 of the 2015 Building Regulations. In the 
event that planning permission was to be recommended a condition would be 
applied in order to address this. Subject to such a condition the proposal would 
comply with policy E7.  
  

8.43 Drainage and Flood Risk  
The application is supported by a Drainage Strategy and Flood Risk Statement 
(Aqua Callidus, 28/4/2020) and Infiltration SuDS GeoReport (British Geological 
Survey, 26 March 2020). The reports detail the proposed surface water 
drainage and conclude that, in accordance with the SuDS principles that the 
development would not result in additional runoff. Subject to a condition to 
ensure compliance with the submitted details the proposed development is not 
considered to result in adverse flood risk and complies with TVBRLP Policy 
E7.  
  

8.44 Residential Amenities  
There are two elements to the consideration of amenity. Firstly is the amenity 
of the future residents of the development site and secondly the impact of the 
proposal upon the amenity of existing neighbouring properties.  
  

8.45 Impact on existing dwellings  
The site is bordered to the south by the neighbouring property known as 
Woodpeckers fronting Cupernham Lane. To the west is the development at 
land west of Cupernham Lane and to the north the permitted, but not yet 
commenced, residential development at Wrens Corner.  
 

8.46 As a result there is some potential for additional overlooking 
and/overshadowing impact. Whilst the rear facing elevations within the 
development to the west and the rear elevations of the proposed dwellings are 
orientated facing each other there remains a substantial separation distance 
between the properties. The rear of the relevant properties situated 18m from 
the western boundary of the application site with distances 29m between the 
dwellings at the closest point. The two sites are further separated by the 
retained tree planting on the western edge of the site. These distances are well 
beyond what would be considered acceptable in a residential setting and has 
been allowed at appeal on neighbouring sites.  
 
Similarly acceptable distances are maintained with the neighbouring property 
to the south (20m) although this is a rear to side relationship. Dwellings are 
situated in a side to side relationship with the permitted scheme to the north. 
As a result it is considered that the proposed development would not result in 
any significant overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing impact and 
complies with policy LHW4.  
  

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 22



 
 
8.47 Impact on proposed dwellings   

The layout for the provision the 9 dwellings provides for adequate private 
amenity space, following the revised layout in relation to trees, and indicates 
that suitable relationships between the properties could be achieved to avoid 
significant impacts on amenity by virtue of overlooking, overshadowing and 
overbearing. 
  

8.48 Impact during construction works  
Representations have raised concern with regard to the impact of noise, mud 
and dust during construction works. Whilst some degree of disturbance is 
inevitable during construction work conditions can be applied to limit the hours 
of construction and to require an environmental management plan to limit 
amenity impacts. Subject to the required conditions the proposed development 
is considered to have no significant adverse impact on amenity and complies 
with TVBRLP Policies LHW4 and E8.  
  

8.49 Social Benefits  
In terms of social benefits the proposal would provide additional housing, albeit 
not affordable, to meet a local need. It would be sited close to the facilities and 
services provided by its proximity to Romsey town. Furthermore the proposal 
would link to new pedestrian and cycle routes through neighbouring sites 
which will improve accessibility to access footpath links to the existing network 
encouraging non-car modes of transport.  
  

8.50 The Council can demonstrate a five year housing land supply, a matter that 
was considered at the Abbotsford Inquiry. Even so the Inspector, mindful of the 
national imperative set out in paragraph 47 of the Framework, to boost 
significantly the supply of housing, attached substantial weight in favour of the 
appeal. 
  

8.51 Economic Benefits  
In line with residential development of this scale there would be economic 
benefits from the proposed development through employment and additional 
spending power resulting from the construction phase and from future 
occupiers of the proposed development. The benefits here are more generic 
than site specific but nonetheless provide weight to the grant of planning 
permission.  
  

8.52 Planning balance  
The application site remains in the countryside area as defined by the local 
plan and as a result is contrary to policy COM2. However the direct 
comparisons with the Inspectors considerations at the Abbotsford inquiry and 
the neighbouring permissions are material considerations of great weight in 
favour of granting permission. In addition the proposed development will 
facilitate the delivery of Economic and social benefits.  
  

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 23



8.53 The proposal is in conflict with the development plan. Therefore, in accordance 
with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, an 
assessment is required as to whether there are other material considerations 
that would outweigh that development plan conflict. In this case the 
development plan conflict is considered to be outweighed by the other material 
considerations, including the benefits of the appeal. As a result it is concluded 
that permission should be granted as a departure from local plan policy COM2.  

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 The location of the site in a sustainable location and comparable to a recent 

permission granted at appeal which is a strong material consideration in favour 
of the principle of development.  
  

9.2 Potential concerns with regard to the impact protected species and biodiversity 
have been resolved. Subject to securing the required conditions and s106 
obligations the proposed development is considered acceptable.  

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 Delegate to Head of Planning & Building for completion of satisfactory 

consultation with Natural England and s106 legal agreement to secure; 

 Removal of land from agricultural production 

 Future management of the mitigation land, and 

 New Forest SPA contribution.  

 Future management of landscaped and biodiversity enhancement 
areas outside of residential garden areas. 

 Off-site Ecological Compensation and Enhancement Strategy land 
and management.   

Then PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 2. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1. 

 3. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details, 
including plans and cross sections, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and 
proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of 
the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof 
course in relation thereto. Development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 24



Reason:  To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new 
development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E1. 

 4. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in full 
accordance with the provisions set out within the Arboricultural 
assessment & method statement (barrell, 15th May 2020 ref 18168-
AA-PB-3) and Tree Protection Plan ref 18168-BT4. 
Reason:  To ensure the enhancement of the development by the 
retention of existing trees and natural features during the 
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan policy E2. 

 5. Tree protective measures installed (in accordance with the tree 
protection condition) shall be maintained and retained for the full 
duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. No activities, nor material storage, nor 
placement of site huts or other equipment what-so-ever shall take 
place within the barrier. 
Reason:  To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

 6. All service routes, drain runs, soakaways or excavations in 
connection with the development hereby permitted shall remain 
wholly outside the tree protective barrier. 
Reason:  To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

 7. Landscape implementation, management and maintenance for a 
minimum period of 5 years shall be undertaken in accordance with 
the specifications on the approved Landscape Plan ref 1718-PP-300 
Rev B. Any plants which die within the first 5 years shall be 
replaced.  
Reason:  To ensure the provision of amenity afforded by proper 
maintenance of existing and new landscape features as an 
improvement of the appearance of the site and to enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2.  

 8. The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid 
out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles to 
enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in 
accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter 
be reserved for such purposes at all times. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1. 

 9. Any gates shall be set back at least 4.5 metres from the edge of the 
carriageway of the adjoining highway. 
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 25



 
 
 10. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the layout 

for the parking and manoeuvring onsite of contractor's and delivery 
vehicles during the construction period shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement of 
development and retained for the duration of the construction 
period.  
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Local Plan 2016 policy T1. 

 11. There shall be no construction or demolition works, no machinery 
shall be operated, no processes carried out and no deliveries 
received or dispatched outside the following times: 07:30 to 18:00 
hours Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 hours on Saturday.  In 
addition, no such activities shall take place on Sundays, Bank or 
Public holidays. 
Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring properties 
in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan policies E8 and 
LWH4. 

 12. The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to 
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water 
efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015. 
Reason:  In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016. 

 13. The drainage system shall be constructed in accordance with the 
Drainage Strategy and Flood Risk Statement Ref 20030 (Aqua 
Callidus, 28/4/2020) and Infiltration SuDS GeoReport Ref 
BGS_308084/10845 (British Geological Survey, 26 March 2020). Any 
changes to the approved documentation must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by Local Planning Authority and Lead Local 
Flood Authority. Any revised details submitted for approval must 
include a technical summary highlighting any changes, updated 
detailed drainage drawings and detailed drainage calculations. 
Details for the long-term maintenance arrangements for the surface 
water drainage system shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of any 
of the dwellings. The submitted details shall include; 
a. Maintenance schedules for each drainage feature type and 

ownership. 
b. Details of protection measures. 
Maintenance and protection measures shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  
Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory form of development and in the 
interest of local amenities in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E7. 

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 26



 14. Development shall proceed in accordance with the ecological 
mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures detailed 
within the Ecological Impact Assessment Final Document (Rev. 1) 
October 2020 (ECOSA), the Biodiversity Metric Assessment Final 
Document (Rev. 3) (ECOSA) and Knotweed Management Plan ref 
JKLE16932 (Japanese Knotweed Ltd, March 2020) unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Ecological 
mitigation, compensation and enhancement features shall be 
created/installed as per ecologists instructions and retained in 
perpetuity in a condition suited for their intended purpose. 
Reason:  To protect biodiversity in accordance with the 
Conservation Regulations 2017, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the 
NERC Act (2006), NPPF and with Policy E5 of the Test Valley 
Borough Council Adopted Local Plan 2011-2029. 

 15. The development shall not be brought into use until vehicular 
visibility splays of 2.4m x 43m as indicated on the approved plans in 
which there should be no obstruction to visibility exceeding 0.6m in 
height above the adjacent carriageway channel line have been 
completed.. Such visibility splays shall thereafter be retained for the 
lifetime of the development. 
Reason:  To provide and maintain adequate visibility in the interests 
of highway safety in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local 
Plan policy T1. 

 16. No development shall take place unless or until an Environmental 
Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority.  The Environmental Management 
Plan shall cover the control of noise, dust and spoil during the 
demolition, site preparation and construction phases of 
development. The Environmental Management Plan shall include the 
provision of wheel washing, and any other suitable facility, to avoid 
the deposit of spoil onto the highway network. Work shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the approved Environmental 
Management Plan.  
Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring properties 
in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan policies E8 and 
LWH4.  

 17. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers: 
2001_0001 
2001_0002  
2001_1001 
2001_1002 
2001_2001 
2001_2002 
2001_2003 
2001_2011 
2001_2012 
2001_2013 
2001_3001 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 27



2001_3002 
2001_3011 
2001_3012  
2001_3021 
2001_3022 
2001_3031 
2001_3032 
2001_6000 
1718-PP-300 REV C 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 18. No works pursuant to this permission shall commence until there 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority:  
(a) a site investigation report documenting the ground conditions 

of the site and incorporating chemical and gas analysis 
identified as appropriate in paragraph 4.2 of the desk top study 
ref GE18038 DSR MAR19 ( in accordance with BS10175;and 
(unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority)  

(b) a detailed scheme for remedial works and measures to be 
undertaken to avoid risk from contaminated land and/or gases 
when the site is developed and proposals for future 
maintenance and monitoring.  Such a scheme shall include 
nomination of a competent person to oversee the 
implementation of the works.  

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied or brought 
into use until there has been submitted to the local planning 
authority verification by a competent person approved under the 
provisions of condition (I)c that any remediation scheme required 
and approved under the provisions of condition (I) c has been 
implemented fully in accordance with the approved details (unless 
with the written agreement of the local planning authority in 
advance of implementation).  Unless agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority such verification shall comprise:  
a) as built drawings of the implemented scheme;  
b) photographs of the remediation works in progress;  
c) certificates demonstrating that imported and/or material left in 

situ is free from contamination;  
d) thereafter the scheme shall be monitored and maintained in 

accordance with the approved scheme.  
Reason:  To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy HAZ04. 

 19. No development shall take place unless or until a scheme for the 
removal of non-native invasive species on site, including Japanese 
knotweed, Himalayan Balsam and variegated yellow archangel, shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. Development shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 28



Reason:  To protect biodiversity in accordance with the 
Conservation Regulations 2017, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, the 
NERC Act (2006), NPPF and with Policy E5 of the Test Valley 
Borough Council Adopted Local Plan 2011-2029. 

 Notes to applicant: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out and 

completed strictly in accordance with the submitted plans, 
specifications and written particulars for which permission is 
hereby granted or which are subsequently submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and in 
compliance with any conditions imposed by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

 2. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 
had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions. 

 3. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 
amended). All work must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat 
presence (e.g. droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are 
encountered at any point during this development. Should this 
occur, further advice should be sought from Natural England and/or 
a professional ecologist. 

 4. Birds' nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection 
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is 
highly advisable to undertake clearance of potential bird nesting 
habitat (such as hedges, scrub, trees, suitable outbuildings etc.) 
outside the bird nesting season, which is generally seen as 
extending from March to the end of August, although may extend 
longer depending on local conditions. If there is absolutely no 
alternative to doing the work in during this period then a thorough, 
careful and quiet examination of the affected area must be carried 
out before clearance starts. If occupied nests are present then work 
must stop in that area, a suitable (approximately 5m) stand-off 
maintained, and clearance can only recommence once the nest 
becomes unoccupied of its own accord. 
 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 29



El

1

7

6

5

9

3

4

2

8

Belbins

LB

Business Park

Pond

Our

Drain

G
le

n

Car Park

C
y
c

le
 W

a
y

Westlink

1
0

16

17

21

14 12

15

13

Ppg Sta

Oak Trees

Willows

West Winds

Woodpeckers

C
U

P
E

R
N

H
A

M
 L

A
N

E

Wrens Corner

T
a
n

g
le

w
o

o
d

Bourne House

Belbins House

E
lla

n
n

a
 H

o
u

s
e

Belbins Valley

El Sub Sta

O
ld

 C
a
n

a
l

Well

ETL

P
ath

34.1m

37.5m

Cottage

Issues

Abbotswood

1

17

1
0

16

1
2

7

7

15

40.5m

Pond

Sub Sta

C
a

m
p

s
ie

Bungalow

L
a

u
re

l  B
a

n
k

Abbotswood

ETL

THIS PLOT IS PRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONARY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

 TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2019

[ Siteplan

Not Set

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 30

pbpf
Rectangle

pbpf_1
Text Box
20/01045/FULLS



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
50

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 B
lo

c
k 

Pl
a

n

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_1
00

1
20

01

ke
y

sit
e 

bo
un

d
a

ry

D
a

ta
 p

ro
vi

d
er

 : 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
.

D
a

ta
 p

ro
vi

d
er

 c
op

yr
ig

ht
 : 

©
 C

ro
w

n 
C

op
yr

ig
ht

 2
01

9.
 A

ll r
ig

ht
s r

es
er

ve
d

. 
Lic

en
ce

 N
um

b
er

 1
00

04
75

14

no
rth

0
2

5
15

m

6

40
.5

m

CUPERNHAM LANE

W
oo

d
p

ec
ke

rs

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S

A
PP

RO
V

ED
 U

N
D

ER
RE

F:
 1

5-
00

67
9-

O
UT

S
(IN

D
IC

A
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

)

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S

A
PP

RO
V

ED
 U

N
D

ER
RE

F:
 1

9/
01

01
9/

O
BL

S
(IN

D
IC

A
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

)

pr
op

os
ed

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 31



1
 
T

i
l
i
a

 
c
o

r
d

a
t
a

1
 
Q

u
e

r
c
u

s
 
r
o

b
u

r

1
 
Q

u
e

r
c
u

s
 
r
o

b
u

r

1
 
C

r
a

t
a

e
g

u
s
 
m

o
n

o
g

y
n

a
 
m

u
l
t
i
-
s
t
e

m

1
 
C

r
a

t
a

e
g

u
s
 
m

o
n

o
g

y
n

a
 
m

u
l
t
i
-
s
t
e

m

1
 
A

m
e

l
a

n
c
h

i
e

r
 
l
a

m
a

r
c
k
i
i
 
m

u
l
t
i
-
s
t
e

m

7
 
H

e
u

c
h

e
r
a

 
m

i
c
r
a

n
t
h

a
 
'
P

a
l
a

c
e

 
P

u
r
p

l
e

'

1
5

 
H

e
u

c
h

e
r
a

 
m

i
c
r
a

n
t
h

a
 
'
P

a
l
a

c
e

 
P

u
r
p

l
e

'

7
 
H

e
u

c
h

e
r
a

 
m

i
c
r
a

n
t
h

a
 
'
P

a
l
a

c
e

 
P

u
r
p

l
e

'

7
 
D

r
y
o

p
t
e

r
i
s
 
f
i
l
i
x
-
m

a
s

9
 
D

r
y
o

p
t
e

r
i
s
 
f
i
l
i
x
-
m

a
s

3
1

 
D

r
y
o

p
t
e

r
i
s
 
f
i
l
i
x
-
m

a
s

1
3

 
S

a
r
c
o

c
o

c
c
a

 
c
o

n
f
u

s
a

9
 
S

a
r
c
o

c
o

c
c
a

 
c
o

n
f
u

s
a

1
9

 
S

a
r
c
o

c
o

c
c
a

 
c
o

n
f
u

s
a

1
1

 
S

t
i
p

a
 
t
e

n
u

i
s
s
i
m

a
 
w

i
t
h

 
7

 
V

e
r
b

e
n

a
 
b

o
n

a
r
i
e

n
s
i
s

2
7

 
S

t
i
p

a
 
t
e

n
u

i
s
s
i
m

a
 
w

i
t
h

 
1

5
 
V

e
r
b

e
n

a
 
b

o
n

a
r
i
e

n
s
i
s

1
9

 
S

t
i
p

a
 
t
e

n
u

i
s
s
i
m

a
 
w

i
t
h

 
1

3
 
V

e
r
b

e
n

a
 
b

o
n

a
r
i
e

n
s
i
s

1
1

 
B

e
r
g

e
n

i
a

 
'
S

i
l
b

e
r
l
i
c
h

t
'

9
 
B

e
r
g

e
n

i
a

 
'
S

i
l
b

e
r
l
i
c
h

t
'

7
 
B

e
r
g

e
n

i
a

 
'
S

i
l
b

e
r
l
i
c
h

t
'

9
 
S

t
a

c
h

y
s
 
b

y
z
a

n
t
i
n

a

5
 
S

t
a

c
h

y
s
 
b

y
z
a

n
t
i
n

a

3
 
S

t
a

c
h

y
s
 
b

y
z
a

n
t
i
n

a

3
 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
a

n
g

u
s
t
i
f
o

l
i
a

 
'
H

i
d

c
o

t
e

'

5
 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
a

n
g

u
s
t
i
f
o

l
i
a

 
'
H

i
d

c
o

t
e

'

7
 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
a

n
g

u
s
t
i
f
o

l
i
a

 
'
H

i
d

c
o

t
e

'

5
 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
a

n
g

u
s
t
i
f
o

l
i
a

 
'
H

i
d

c
o

t
e

'

1
3

 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
a

n
g

u
s
t
i
f
o

l
i
a

 
'
H

i
d

c
o

t
e

'

1
7

 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
a

n
g

u
s
t
i
f
o

l
i
a

 
'
H

i
d

c
o

t
e

'

1
1

 
S

k
i
m

m
i
a

 
x
 
c
o

n
f
u

s
a

 
'
K

e
w

 
G

r
e

e
n

'

9
 
S

k
i
m

m
i
a

 
x
 
c
o

n
f
u

s
a

 
'
K

e
w

 
G

r
e

e
n

'

9
 
S

k
i
m

m
i
a

 
x
 
c
o

n
f
u

s
a

 
'
K

e
w

 
G

r
e

e
n

'

5
 
R

o
s
m

a
r
i
n

u
s
 
o

f
f
i
c
i
n

a
l
i
s
 
'
P

r
o

s
t
r
a

t
u

s
'

5
 
R

o
s
m

a
r
i
n

u
s
 
o

f
f
i
c
i
n

a
l
i
s
 
'
P

r
o

s
t
r
a

t
u

s
'

9
 
R

o
s
m

a
r
i
n

u
s
 
o

f
f
i
c
i
n

a
l
i
s

'
P

r
o

s
t
r
a

t
u

s
'

9
 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
s
t
o

e
c
h

a
s

7
 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

s
t
o

e
c
h

a
s

7
 
L

a
v
a

n
d

u
l
a

 
s
t
o

e
c
h

a
s

5
 
H

e
b

e
 
r
a

k
a

i
e

n
s
i
s

5
 
H

e
b

e
 
r
a

k
a

i
e

n
s
i
s

5
 
H

e
b

e
 
r
a

k
a

i
e

n
s
i
s

5
 
S

a
r
c
o

c
o

c
c
a

 
h

o
o

k
e

r
i
a

n
a

 
v
a

r
.
 
h

u
m

i
l
i
s

5
 
S

a
r
c
o

c
o

c
c
a

 
h

o
o

k
e

r
i
a

n
a

v
a

r
.
 
h

u
m

i
l
i
s

9
 
S

a
r
c
o

c
o

c
c
a

 
h

o
o

k
e

r
i
a

n
a

 
v
a

r
.
 
h

u
m

i
l
i
s

1
5

 
P

e
n

n
i
s
e

t
u

m
 
a

l
o

p
e

c
u

r
o

i
d

e
s

w
i
t
h

 
1

5
 
A

l
l
i
u

m
 
'
P

u
r
p

l
e

 
S

e
n

s
a

t
i
o

n
'

2
7

 
P

e
n

n
i
s
e

t
u

m
 
a

l
o

p
e

c
u

r
o

i
d

e
s
 
w

i
t
h

 
2

7
 
A

l
l
i
u

m
 
'
P

u
r
p

l
e

 
S

e
n

s
a

t
i
o

n
'

3
5

 
P

e
n

n
i
s
e

t
u

m
 
a

l
o

p
e

c
u

r
o

i
d

e
s
 
w

i
t
h

 
3

5
 
A

l
l
i
u

m
 
'
P

u
r
p

l
e

 
S

e
n

s
a

t
i
o

n
'

1
9

 
E

s
c
a

l
l
o

n
i
a

 
'
I
v
e

y
i
'

1
7

 
S

a
m

b
u

c
u

s
 
n

i
g

r
a

2
7

 
E

l
a

e
a

g
n

u
s
 
x
 
e

b
b

i
n

g
e

i

9
 
E

u
o

n
y
m

u
s
 
f
o

r
t
u

n
e

i
 
'
E

m
e

r
a

l
d

 
G

a
i
e

t
y
'

9
 
E

u
o

n
y
m

u
s
 
f
o

r
t
u

n
e

i
 
'
E

m
e

r
a

l
d

 
G

a
i
e

t
y
'

9
 
E

u
o

n
y
m

u
s
 
f
o

r
t
u

n
e

i
 
'
E

m
e

r
a

l
d

 
G

a
i
e

t
y
'

5
 
C

e
a

n
o

t
h

u
s
 
t
h

y
r
s
i
f
l
o

r
u

s

'
R

e
p

e
n

s
'

5
 
C

e
a

n
o

t
h

u
s
 
t
h

y
r
s
i
f
l
o

r
u

s
 
'
R

e
p

e
n

s
'

7
 
C

e
a

n
o

t
h

u
s
 
t
h

y
r
s
i
f
l
o

r
u

s
 
'
R

e
p

e
n

s
'

7
 
S

a
n

t
o

l
i
n

a
 
c
h

a
m

a
e

c
y
p

a
r
i
s
s
u

s

5
 
S

a
n

t
o

l
i
n

a
 
c
h

a
m

a
e

c
y
p

a
r
i
s
s
u

s

5
 
S

a
n

t
o

l
i
n

a
 
c
h

a
m

a
e

c
y
p

a
r
i
s
s
u

s

9
 
S

k
i
m

m
i
a

 
x
 
c
o

n
f
u

s
a

 
'
K

e
w

 
G

r
e

e
n

'

1
1

 
D

r
y
o

p
t
e

r
i
s
 
f
i
l
i
x
-
m

a
s

1
 
A

m
e

l
a

n
c
h

i
e

r
 
c
a

n
a

d
e

n
s
i
s

1
 
A

m
e

l
a

n
c
h

i
e

r
 
c
a

n
a

d
e

n
s
i
s

S
C

A
L

E

0
5

1
0

1
5

2
0

m

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
v
e

g
e

t
a

t
i
o

n
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

t
a

i
n

e
d

a
n

d
 
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 
t
o

 
i
m

p
r
o

v
e

 
a

n
d

s
t
r
e

n
g

t
h

e
n

 
r
o

a
d

 
e

d
g

e
,
 
n

o
t
e

 
a

r
e

a

o
u

t
s
i
d

e
 
o

f
 
s
i
t
e

 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
v
e

g
e

t
a

t
i
o

n
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

t
a

i
n

e
d

a
n

d
 
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 
t
o

 
i
m

p
r
o

v
e

 
a

n
d

s
t
r
e

n
g

t
h

e
n

 
r
o

a
d

 
e

d
g

e
,
 
n

o
t
e

 
a

r
e

a

o
u

t
s
i
d

e
 
o

f
 
s
i
t
e

 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y

1
5

 
E

u
o

n
y
m

u
s
 
f
o

r
t
u

n
e

i
 
'
E

m
e

r
a

l
d

 
G

a
i
e

t
y
'

1
5

 
C

e
a

n
o

t
h

u
s
 
t
h

y
r
s
i
f
l
o

r
u

s
 
'
R

e
p

e
n

s
'

2
2

1
1

4
4

3
3

CUPERNHAM LANE

5

6

6

V

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S

A
PP

RO
V

ED
 U

N
D

ER
RE

F:
 1

5-
00

67
9-

O
UT

S
(IN

D
IC

A
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

)

8

9

9

8

7

7

5

5

8

6

7

9

2
1

3
4

5

G
A

RA
G

E

6

G
A

RA
G

E

BINS & CYCLES

BINS & CYCLESBINS & CYCLES

BINS & CYCLES

BI
NS

 &
 C

YC
LE

S

BI
NS

 &
 C

YC
LE

S

BINS & CYCLES

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 S
HO

W
N

 A
S

IN
D

IC
A

TIV
E 

O
N

LY
. F

O
R

D
ET

A
IL

S 
O

F 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
SE

E 
PL

A
N

S 
BY

 U
BU

 D
ES

IG
N

.

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN G

A
RD

EN

EX
IS

TIN
G

 T
RE

ES

EX
IS

TIN
G

 T
RE

E

EX
IS

TIN
G

 T
RE

E

1
 
C

r
a

t
a

e
g

u
s
 
m

o
n

o
g

y
n

a
 
m

u
l
t
i
-
s
t
e

m

E
x
t
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y
 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y

E
x
t
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y
 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y

E
x
t
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y
 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
t
r
e

e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
h

e
d

g
e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
b

e
d

N
a

t
i
v
e

 
t
h

i
c
k
e

t
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
,
 
n

o
t
e

:
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g

t
o

 
b

e
 
o

u
t
s
i
d

e
 
o

f
 
p

r
o

p
e

r
t
y
 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
i
e

s
,

m
a

i
n

t
e

n
a

n
c
e

 
t
o

 
f
o

r
m

 
p

a
r
t
 
o

f

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t
 
c
o

m
p

a
n

y
 
o

p
e

r
a

t
i
o

n
s

A
r
e

a
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
s
e

e
d

e
d

 
w

i
t
h

 
E

m
o

r
s
g

a
t
e

E
G

9
,
 
o

r
 
e

q
u

i
v
a

l
e

n
t
 
-
 
g

r
a

s
s
 
m

i
x
t
u

r
e

 
f
o

r

h
e

d
g

e
r
o

w
s
 
a

n
d

 
w

o
o

d
l
a

n
d

,
 
s
o

w
n

 
a

t

5
g

/
m

2

S
p

e
c
i
m

e
n

 
s
h

r
u

b

M
u

l
t
i
-
s
t
e

m
 
t
r
e

e

P
r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
n

a
t
i
v
e

 
s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
m

i
x
 
h

e
d

g
e

L
E

G
E

N
D

E
x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
t
r
e

e
 
t
o

 
b

e

r
e

t
a

i
n

e
d

 
a

n
d

 
p

r
o

t
e

c
t
e

d

G
e
n

e
r
a
l
 
l
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

i
n

g

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
l
e
v
e
l
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
d
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
v
e
g

e
t
a

t
i
o
n

.
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
v
e
g
e
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
a
r
e

t
o
 
b
e
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
B

S
5
8
3
7
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o
n
.
 
A

l
l
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 
w

o
r
k
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
n
 
b
y
 
c
o
m

p
e
t
e
n
t
 
p
e
r
s
o
n
s
,

w
i
t
h
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
 
t
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
e
q
u
i
p
m

e
n
t
.

S
e
r
v
i
c
e
s

T
h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
 
m

u
s
t
 
a
s
c
e
r
t
a
i
n
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
m

s
e
l
v
e
s
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
a
c
t
 
l
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
u
n
d
e
r
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
s
e
r
v
i
c
e
s
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
i
n
g
 
w

o
r
k
.

T
o

p
s
o

i
l

T
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
h
a
n
d
l
e
d
 
(
i
.
e
.
 
e
x
c
a
v
a
t
e
d
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
i
m

p
o
r
t
e
d
,
 
s
t
o
r
e
d
,
 
s
p
r
e

a
d

,
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a

t
e
d

)
 
i
n
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
m

e
t
h
o
d
 
a
g
r
e
e
d
 
i
n
 
w

r
i
t
i
n
g

b
y
 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
A

r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
o
 
w

o
r
k
 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
i
n
g
.
 
A

m
e
l
i
o
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
s
 
d
e
t
e
r
m

i
n
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
n
a
l
y
s
i
s
.
 
 
I
f
 
p
o
o
r
 
d
r
a
i
n
a
g
e
 
i
s

s
u
s
p
e
c
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
s
o
i
l
 
s
u
r
f
a
c
e
s
,
 
t
h
e
s
e
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
b
r
o
k
e
n
 
u
p
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
o
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
u
r
f
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
e
d
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
o
f
 
3
0
0
m

m
 
t
o

r
e
m

o
v
e
 
l
i
k
e
l
i
h
o
o
d
 
o
f
 
c
o
m

p
a
c
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
d
a
m

a
g
e
 
t
o
 
n
e
w

 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d

 
t
u
r
f
.
 
W

h
e
r
e
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
i
m

p
o
r
t
e
d
,
 
s
o
i
l
 
m

e
d
i
u
m

p
a
r
a
m

e
t
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
w

i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w

i
n
g
:

S
o
i
l
 
t
e
x
t
u
r
e
:

s
a
n
d
 

2
0
-
7
5
%

s
i
l
t

5
-
6
0
%

c
l
a
y
 

5
-
3
0
%

M
a
x
i
m

u
m

 
s
t
o
n
e
 
s
i
z
e
 
i
n
 
a
n
y
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n
:
 

5
0
m

m

p
H

:
5
.
5
 
-
 
7
.
8

E
l
e
c
t
r
i
c
a
l
 
c
o
n
d
u
c
t
i
v
i
t
y
:

1
0
0
-
9
0
0
 
u
S

/
 
c
m

O
r
g
a
n
i
c
 
m

a
t
t
e
r
:

>
 
4
%

N
i
t
r
o
g
e
n
:

>
 
0
.
2
%

P
h
o
s
p
h
o
r
o
u
s
:

>
 
2
6
 
m

g
/
l

P
o
t
a
s
s
i
u
m

:
>

 
2
4
0
 
m

g
/
l

M
a
g
n
e
s
i
u
m

:
>

5
0
 
m

g
/
l

I
m

p
o
r
t
e
d
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
 
g
o
o
d
 
q
u
a
l
i
t
y
 
l
o
a
m

 
t
o
 
B

S
 
3
8
8
2
 
o
r
 
m

a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
e

d
 
t
o

p
s
o

i
l
.
 
A

l
l
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
t
h
o
r
o
u
g
h
l
y
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
e
d

b
y
 
h
a
n
d
 
o
r
 
s
u
i
t
a
b
l
e
 
m

a
c
h
i
n
e
r
y
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
l
l
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
l
a
y
e
r
,
 
i
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
m

e
l
i
o
r
a
n
t
s
 
a
s
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
e
d
 
a
n
d
/
o
r
 
a
s
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d

b
y
 
a
n
a
l
y
s
i
s
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
B

S
 
3
8
8
2
.
 
H

a
n
d
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e

d
 
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
a
c
h
i
e
v
e
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
 
f
i
n
i
s
h
 
o
n
 
a
r
e
a
s

w
h
e
r
e
 
m

a
c
h
i
n
e
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
s
 
i
m

p
o
s
s
i
b
l
e
 
i
e
 
a
d
j
a
c
e
n
t
 
t
o
 
k
e
r
b
s
,
 
m

a
n
h
o
l
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
f
o
o

t
p
a
t
h
 
j
u
n
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
e
t
c
.
 
S

u
r
p
l
u
s
 
p
l
a
n
t
 
m

a
t
t
e
r
,

r
u
b
b
i
s
h
 
a
n
d
 
s
u
r
f
a
c
e
 
s
t
o
n
e
s
 
h
a
v
i
n
g
 
a
n
y
 
d
i
m

e
n
s
i
o
n
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
2
5

 
m

m
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
o
l
l
e
c
t
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 
f
r
o
m

 
t
h
e
 
s
i
t
e
.
 
E

x
i
s
t
i
n
g

t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
t
r
i
p
p
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
-
u
s
e
d
 
i
f
 
s
u
i
t
a
b
l
e
 
a
s
 
p
e
r
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
.
 
T

o
p

s
o
i
l
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
t
o
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
h
e
a
p
s
,
 
m

a
x
i
m

u
m

 
o
f
 
4
m

 
i
n
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
,

p
r
o
v
i
d
i
n
g
 
s
o
i
l
 
i
s
 
r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
l
y
 
d
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
f
r
i
a
b
l
e
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
s
t
r
i
p
p
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
n
d
l
i
n
g
 
-
 
u
s
i
n

g
 
a
 
t
r
a
c
k
e
d
 
e
x
c
a
v
a
t
o
r
.
 
T

o
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
 
f
r
o
m

 
w

e
t

w
e
a
t
h
e
r
 
o
n
c
e
 
f
i
n
a
l
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
i
s
 
a
c
h
i
e
v
e
d
,
 
a
n
 
e
x
c
a
v
a
t
o
r
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
g
r
a
d
e
 
t
h
e

 
s
i
d
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
p
 
o
f
 
s
t
o
c
k
p
i
l
e
 
t
o
 
a
 
f
i
r
m

 
s
u
r
f
a
c
e
.

F
e
r
t
i
l
i
z
e
r
/
C

o
m

p
o

s
t

A
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
(
p
e
a
t
 
f
r
e
e
)
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
t
s
 
t
o
 
P

A
S

1
0
0
 
a
n
d
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
z
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
d
d
e
d
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
s
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
f
u
l
l
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
o
f
 
g
r
o
w

i
n
g

m
e
d
i
u
m

.

P
l
a
n

t
 
H

a
n

d
l
i
n

g

P
l
a
n
t
 
h
a
n
d
l
i
n
g
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
n
u
r
s
e
r
y
,
 
a
n
d
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
r
a
n
s
i
t
 
u
p
 
t
o
 
d
e
l
i
v
e
r
y
,
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b

e
 
i
n

 
a
c
c
o

r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
'
P

l
a
n
t
 
H

a
n
d
l
i
n
g
'
,
 
t
h
e
 
b
o
o
k
l
e
t

p
u
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
C

o
m

m
i
t
t
e
e
 
f
o
r
 
P

l
a
n
t
 
S

u
p
p
l
y
 
a
n
d
 
E

s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
m

e
n
t
 
(
C

P
S

E
)
.
 
T

h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
c
o
m

p
l
y
 
w

i
t
h
 
c
l
a
u
s
e
s
 
3
 
&

 
4
 
o
f
 
t
h
e

a
b
o
v
e
 
b
o
o
k
l
e
t
 
(
o
b
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
f
r
o
m

 
t
h
e
 
H

o
r
t
i
c
u
l
t
u
r
e
 
T

r
a
d
e
s
 
A

s
s
o
c
i
a
t
i
o
n

,
 
1
9

 
H

i
g
h

 
S

t
r
e
e
t
,
 
T

h
e
a
l
e
,
 
R

e
a
d
i
n
g
,
 
B

e
r
k
s
 
R

G
7
 
5
H

)
 
w

h
i
c
h

r
e
f
e
r
s
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
c
e
i
p
t
,
 
u
n
l
o
a
d
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
t
e
m

p
o
r
a
r
y
 
s
t
o
r
a
g
e
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
n
t
s
.
 
G

e
n
e
r
a
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
 
s
t
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
f
o
r
m

 
t
o
 
B

S
 
3
9
3
6
,
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 
n
u
r
s
e
r
y

s
t
o
c
k
 
t
o
 
B

S
 
5
2
3
6
,
 
a
n
d
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
B

S
 
4
4
2
8
.
 
P

l
a
n
t
s
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
f
i
r
s
t
 
c
l
a
s
s
 
e
x
a
m

p
l
e
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
s
p
e
c
i
e
s
 
o
r
 
v
a
r
i
e
t
y
,
 
f
r
e
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
a
l
l
 
p
e
s
t
s

a
n
d
 
d
i
s
e
a
s
e
s
,
 
w

i
t
h
 
g
o
o
d
 
f
i
b
r
o
u
s
 
r
o
o
t
 
s
y
s
t
e
m

s
 
a
n
d
 
m

a
t
e
r
i
a
l
l
y
 
u
n
d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 
(
r
e
f
e
r
 
t
o
 
r
e
l
e
v
a
n
t
 
s
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
o
f
 
B

S
3
9
3
6
 
P

a
r
t
s
 
1
-
4

'
S

p
e
c
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
o
f
 
N

u
r
s
e
r
y
 
S

t
o
c
k
'
)
.
 
A

l
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
i
n
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
c
o
m

p
l
i
a
n
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
B

S
4
4
2
8
:
 
1
9
8
9
 
'
C

o
d
e
 
o
f
 
P

r
a
c
t
i
c
e
 
f
o
r

g
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
(
e
x
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
h
a
r
d
 
s
u
r
f
a
c
e
s
)
'
.
 
C

a
r
r
y
 
o
u
t
 
a
l
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
w

h
i
l
e
 
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
w

e
a
t
h
e
r
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
r
e
 
s
u
i
t
a
b
l
e
:

·
D

o
 
n
o
t
 
p
l
a
n
t
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
s
 
o
f
 
f
r
o
s
t
 
o
r
 
s
t
r
o
n
g
 
w

i
n
d
s
.
 
P

l
a
n
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
l
l
o
w

i
n
g
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
s

·
D

e
c
i
d
u
o
u
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
n
i
f
e
r
 
t
r
e
e
s
:
 
L
a
t
e
 
O

c
t
o
b
e
r
 
t
o
 
l
a
t
e
 
M

a
r
c
h

·
C

o
n
t
a
i
n
e
r
 
g
r
o
w

n
 
p
l
a
n
t
s
:
 
A

t
 
a
n
y
 
t
i
m

e
 
i
f
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
w

e
a
t
h
e
r
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
r
e
 
f
a
v
o
u
r
a
b
l
e
.
 
E

n
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
a
d
e
q
u
a
t
e
 
w

a
t
e
r
i
n
g

a
n
d
 
w

e
e
d
 
c
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
v
i
d
e
d

·
B

u
l
b
s
 
:
 
S

e
p
t
e
m

b
e
r
/
O

c
t
o
b
e
r

S
e
t
t
i
n
g
-
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
b
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
A

r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
w

o
r
k
 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
s
.
 
E

n
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t
 
p
l
a
n
t
 
b
e
d
s
 
a
r
e

n
e
a
t
l
y
 
d
e
f
i
n
e
d
,
 
a
n
d
 
r
i
s
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
a
d
j
a
c
e
n
t
 
p
a
v
e
d
 
a
r
e
a
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
o
r
n
a
m

e
n
t
a
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

u
l
c
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
7
5
m

m
 
(
s
e
t
t
l
e
d
 
d
e
p
t
h
)

b
a
r
k
 
m

u
l
c
h
.
 
S

a
m

p
l
e
 
o
f
 
m

u
l
c
h
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
A

r
c
h
i
t
e
c
t
.
 
T

o
p
s
o
i
l
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
3
0
0
m

m
 
f
o
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
1
5
0
m

m
 
f
o
r

g
r
a
s
s
.

T
r
e
e
s

T
r
e
e
s
 
s
h
o
w

n
 
o
n
 
p
l
a
n
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
s
p
e
c
i
e
s
 
a
s
 
l
a
b
e
l
l
e
d
 
o
r
 
s
i
m

i
l
a
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
.
 
A

l
l
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
p
i
t
s
 
m

i
n
.
 
1
m

 
x
 
1
m

 
x

0
.
9
m

 
d
e
e
p
 
b
a
c
k
f
i
l
l
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
5
0
0
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
8
0
%

 
c
l
e
a
n
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
%

 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
g
r
e
e
n
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
t
 
t
o
 
P

A
S

1
0
0
 
a
n
d
 
1
0
0
 
g
m

s

g
r
a
n
u
l
a
r
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
z
e
r
,
 
o
v
e
r
 
4
0
0
m

m
 
w

a
s
h
e
d
 
m

e
d
i
u
m

 
c
o
a
r
s
e
 
g
r
a
d
e
 
s
a
n
d
 
b
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
a
s
e
 
o
f
 
p
i
t
.
 
W

a
t
e
r
-
i
n
 
h
e
a
v
i
l
y
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
a
n
d

s
u
r
f
a
c
e
 
m

u
l
c
h
e
d
 
7
5
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
.
 
U

n
l
e
s
s
 
n
o
t
e
d
 
a
b
o
v
e
 
a
s
 
r
e
q
u
i
r
i
n
g
 
u
n
d
e
r
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
g
u
y
i
n
g
,
 
a
l
l
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
s
t
a
k
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
t
i
e
d

a
n
d
 
m

u
l
t
i
 
s
t
e
m

s
 
d
i
a
g
o
n
a
l
 
s
i
n
g
l
e
 
s
t
a
k
e
.
 
S

a
m

p
l
e
 
o
f
 
s
t
a
k
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
e
a
c
h
 
s
p
e
c
i
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
.
 
 
T

r
e
e
 
s
t
a
k
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
b
l
a
c
k
.

A
n
y
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
 
t
r
e
e
 
w

o
r
k
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
b
y
 
a
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
t
r
e
e
 
s
u
r
g
e
o
n
 
t
o
 
B

S
 
3
9
9
8
.
 
T

r
e
e
s
 
p
l
a
n
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
g
r
a
s
s
 
l
a
w

n
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
e
t

i
n
 
b
a
r
e
 
e
a
r
t
h
 
c
i
r
c
l
e
s
,
 
1
m

 
d
i
a
m

e
t
e
r
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
t
r
e
e
 
t
r
u
n
k
,
 
w

i
t
h
 
t
u
r
f
 
t
r
i
m

m
e
d
 
n
e
a
t
l
y
 
t
o
 
f
o
r
m

 
c
i
r
c
l
e
,
 
a
n
d
 
e
a
r
t
h
 
m

u
l
c
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d

b
a
r
k
 
m

u
l
c
h
 
t
o
 
7
5
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
.
 
R

e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

a
d
e
 
t
o
 
B

S
 
8
5
4
5
:
2
0
1
4
 
T

r
e
e
s
:
 
f
r
o
m

 
n
u
r
s
e
r
y
 
t
o
 
i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e

l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
:
 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
t
i
o
n
s

S
p

e
c
i
m

e
n

 
S

h
r
u

b
s

A
l
l
 
s
h
r
u
b
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
p
i
t
 
o
f
 
m

i
n
,
 
s
i
z
e
 
0
.
4
m

 
x
 
0
.
4
m

 
x
 
0
.
4
m

 
d
e
e
p
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
t
e
 
f
u
l
l
 
r
o
o
t
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
,
 
b
a
c
k
f
i
l
l
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
8
0
%

c
l
e
a
n
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
%

 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
g
r
e
e
n
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
t
 
t
o
 
P

A
S

1
0
0
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
 
g
m

s
 
g
r
a
n
u
l
a
r
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
z
e
r
.
 
A

l
l
 
s
h
r
u
b
 
b
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

u
l
c
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

7
5
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
a
r
k
 
m

u
l
c
h
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
.

S
h

r
u

b
 
H

e
r
b

a
c
e
o

u
s
 
&

 
G

r
o

u
n

d
 
C

o
v
e
r
 
P

l
a
n

t
i
n

g

A
l
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
e
d
 
i
n
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
e
d
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
b
e
d
s
 
a
t
 
d
e
n
s
i
t
i
e
s
 
s
h
o
w

n
 
i
n
 
p
l
a
n
t
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
,
 
i
n
 
p
i
t
s
 
o
f
 
m

i
n
.
 
s
i
z
e
 
0
.
3
m

 
x
 
0
.
3
m

 
x
 
0
.
3
m

d
e
e
p
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
t
e
 
f
u
l
l
 
r
o
o
t
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
,
 
b
a
c
k
f
i
l
l
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
8
0
%

 
c
l
e
a
n
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
%

 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
g
r
e
e
n
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
t
 
t
o
 
P

A
S

1
0
0

a
n
d
 
2
0
 
g
m

s
 
g
r
a
n
u
l
a
r
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
z
e
r
.
 
 
A

l
l
 
s
h
r
u
b
 
b
e
d
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
i
n
 
m

i
n
.
 
3
0
0
m

m
 
g
o
o
d
 
q
u
a
l
i
t
y
,
 
w

e
l
l
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

u
l
c
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

7
5
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
a
r
k
 
m

u
l
c
h
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
.

B
u

l
b

 
p

l
a
n

t
i
n

g

A
l
l
 
b
u
l
b
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
e
d
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
g
i
v
e
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
,
 
i
n
 
r
a
n
d
o
m

 
m

i
x
e
d
 
d
r
i
f
t
s
 
o
f
 
s
i
n
g
l
e
 
s
p
e
c
i
e
s
 
i
n
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
l
a
n
,

m
i
n
i
m

u
m

 
1
5
 
b
u
l
b
s
 
p
e
r
 
d
r
i
f
t
 
o
f
 
s
i
n
g
l
e
 
s
p
e
c
i
e
s
.
 
F

o
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
,
 
n
a
t
u
r
a
l
i
z
e
 
b
u
l
b
 
p
o
s
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
b
y
 
d
r
o
p
p
i
n
g
 
b
u
l
b
s
 
f
r
o
m

 
w

a
i
s
t
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
.
 
N

e
a
t
l
y

r
e
m

o
v
e
 
a
 
p
l
u
g
 
o
f
 
t
u
r
f
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
.
 
P

l
a
n
t
 
s
o
 
t
h
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
o
p
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
b
u
l
b
 
i
s
 
a
t
 
a
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
o
f
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m

a
t
e
l
y
 
t
w

i
c
e
 
i
t
s
 
h
e
i
g
h
t

w
i
t
h
 
b
a
s
e
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
t
a
c
t
 
w

i
t
h
 
b
o
t
t
o
m

 
o
f
 
h
o
l
e
.
 
B

u
l
b
s
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
n
o
 
c
l
o
s
e
r
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
x
i
m

a
t
e
l
y
 
t
w

i
c
e
 
t
h
e
 
w

i
d
t
h
 
o
f
 
a
 
s
i
n
g
l
e

b
u
l
b
.

G
r
a
s
s
/
T

u
r
f

T
u
r
f
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
e
d
i
n
g
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
o
n
l
y
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
 
s
e
a
s
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
w

h
i
l
e
 
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
w

e
a
t
h
e
r
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
r
e
 
s
u
i
t
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r

t
h
e
 
r
e
l
e
v
a
n
t
 
o
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
.
 
O

n
l
y
 
m

a
c
h
i
n
e
r
y
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
o
l
s
 
s
u
i
t
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
t
h
e
 
s
i
t
e
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
 
w

o
r
k
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
.

H
a
n
d
 
t
o
o
l
s
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
a
r
o
u
n
d
 
t
r
e
e
s
,
 
p
l
a
n
t
s
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
c
o
n
f
i
n
e
d
 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 
w

h
e
r
e
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
i
m

p
r
a
c
t
i
c
a
l
 
t
o
 
u
s
e
 
m

a
c
h
i
n
e
r
y
.
 
T

h
e
 
s
o
i
l
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e

w
e
e
d
 
f
r
e
e
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
t
o
 
t
u
r
f
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
e
d
i
n
g
.
 
C

o
n
t
a
c
t
 
h
e
r
b
i
c
i
d
e
 
a
s
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
e
d
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
t
o
 
a
l
l
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
o
f
 
w

e
e
d
 
g
r
o
w

t
h
 
4
-
6
 
w

e
e
k
s

b
e
f
o
r
e
 
g
r
a
s
s
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
p
e
a
t
e
d
 
i
f
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
 
t
o
 
m

a
i
n
t
a
i
n
 
a
 
w

e
e
d
 
f
r
e
e
 
b
e
d
.
 
 
W

h
e
r
e
 
d
e
e
p
 
r
o
o
t
e
d
 
w

e
e
d
s
 
a
r
e
 
p
r
e
s
e
n
t
 
(
d
o
c
k
s
,

t
h
i
s
t
l
e
s
 
e
t
c
.
)
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
G

l
y
p
h
o
s
a
t
e
-
b
a
s
e
d
 
h
e
r
b
i
c
i
d
e
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
s
p
o
t
 
t
r
e
a
t
m

e
n
t
.
 
T

u
r
f
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
l
a
i
d
 
o
n
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
,

l
e
v
e
l
l
e
d
 
s
o
i
l
 
(
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

 
1
5
0
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
)
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
i
n
d
i
c
a
t
e
d
 
o
n
 
t
h
e
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g
s
 
i
n
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
B

S
 
4
4
2
8
:
1
9
8
9
.
 
A

l
l
 
g
r
a
s
s
 
a
r
e
a
s

t
o
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 
q
u
a
l
i
t
y
 
t
u
r
f
 
f
o
r
 
e
x
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
a
n
d
 
l
a
w

n
 
t
u
r
f
 
f
o
r
 
i
n
t
e
r
n
a
l
 
g
a
r
d
e
n
 
a
r
e
a
s
,
 
o
r
 
e
q
u
i
v
a
l
e
n
t
 
s
e
e
d
.

C
l
i
p

p
e
d

 
H

e
d

g
e
s

E
s
c
a
l
l
o
n
i
a
 
'
I
v
e
y
i
'
 
-
 
P

l
a
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
s
 
f
e
a
t
h
e
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
.
 
 
P

l
a
n
t
 
s
p
a
c
i
n
g
 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n
 
o
n
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
.
 
P

l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
t
r
e
n
c
h
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

6
0
0
 
w

i
d
t
h
 
x
 
5
0
0
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
t
e
 
f
u
l
l
 
r
o
o
t
 
s
p
r
e
a
d
,
 
b
a
c
k
f
i
l
l
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
8
0
%

 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
%

 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
g
r
e
e
n

c
o
m

p
o
s
t
 
t
o
 
P

A
S

1
0
0
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
 
g
m

s
 
g
r
a
n
u
l
a
r
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
z
e
r
 
o
v
e
r
 
2
0
0
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
w

a
s
h
e
d
 
m

e
d
i
u
m

 
c
o
a
r
s
e
 
g
r
a
d
e
 
s
a
n
d
.
 
A

l
l
 
h
e
d
g
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e

m
u
l
c
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
7
5
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
a
r
k
 
m

u
l
c
h
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
.

M
i
x
e
d

 
N

a
t
i
v
e
 
H

e
d

g
e

 
-
 
P

l
a
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
a
s
 
f
e
a
t
h
e
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
.
 
 
P

l
a
n
t
 
s
p
a
c
i
n
g
 
d
o
u
b
l
e
 
s
t
a
g
g
e
r
e
d
 
r
o
w

 
a
s
 
s
h
o
w

n
 
o
n
 
s
c
h
e
d
u
l
e
.

P
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
t
r
e
n
c
h
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

 
6
0
0
 
w

i
d
t
h
 
x
 
5
0
0
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
,
 
b
a
c
k
f
i
l
l
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
8
0
%

 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
%

 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
g
r
e
e
n
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
t
 
t
o

P
A

S
1
0
0
 
a
n
d
 
2
0
 
g
m

s
 
g
r
a
n
u
l
a
r
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
z
e
r
 
o
v
e
r
 
2
0
0
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
w

a
s
h
e
d
 
m

e
d
i
u
m

 
c
o
a
r
s
e
 
g
r
a
d
e
 
s
a
n
d
.
 
A

l
l
 
h
e
d
g
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
m

u
l
c
h
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

7
5
m

m
 
d
e
p
t
h
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
b
a
r
k
 
m

u
l
c
h
 
a
f
t
e
r
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
.

S
p

e
c
i
e
s
 
R

i
c
h

 
G

r
a
s
s
 
S

e
e
d

i
n

g

K
i
l
l
 
o
f
f
 
a
n
y
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
v
e
g
e
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
b
y
 
s
p
r
a
y
i
n
g
 
o
f
f
 
w

i
t
h
 
p
r
o
p
r
i
e
t
a
r
y
 
h
e
r
b
i
c
i
d
e
 
a
n
d
 
a
l
l
o
w

 
 
t
i
m

e
 
t
o
 
e
l
a
p
s
e
 
a
s
 
r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e

m
a
n
u
f
a
c
t
u
r
e
r
 
b
e
f
o
r
e
 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
i
n
g
 
a
n
y
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
w

o
r
k
s
.
 
I
f
 
t
i
m

e
 
p
e
r
m

i
t
s
,
 
a
 
'
s
t
a
l
e
 
s
e
e
d
 
b
e
d
'
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
e
d
,
 
b
y
 
a
l
l
o
w

i
n
g
 
t
h
e

g
r
a
d
e
d
 
m

e
a
d
o
w

 
a
r
e
a
 
t
o
 
c
o
l
o
n
i
s
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
w

e
e
d
s
 
f
r
o
m

 
t
h
e
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
s
o
i
l
 
s
e
e
d
 
b
a
n
k
 
f
o
l
l
o
w

i
n
g
 
i
n
i
t
i
a
l
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
I
 
r
o
t
o
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
a
n

a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
a
p
p
l
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
p
r
o
p
r
i
e
t
a
r
y
 
h
e
r
b
i
c
i
d
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
 
a
n
y
 
w

e
e
d
 
g
r
o
w

t
h
.
 
A

r
e
a
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
s
e
e
d
e
d
 
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
f
i
n
e
l
y
 
g
r
a
d
e
d

t
o
 
b
r
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
a
 
u
n
i
f
o
r
m

 
a
n
d
 
e
v
e
n
 
g
r
a
d
e
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
r
r
e
c
t
 
f
i
n
i
s
h
e
d
 
l
e
v
e
l
 
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
 
a
l
l
 
m

i
n
o
r
 
h
o
l
l
o
w

s
 
a
n
d
 
r
i
d
g
e
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
s
t
o
n
e
s
 
a
n
d

d
e
b
r
i
s
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r
 
t
h
a
n
 
5
0
m

m
 
i
n
 
s
i
z
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
d
i
s
p
o
s
e
d
 
o
f
 
o
f
f
-
s
i
t
e
.
 
S

e
e
d
e
d
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
c
o
n
s
i
s
t
 
o
f
 
m

i
n
.
 
3
0
0
m

m
 
d
e
e
p

e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
(
f
r
e
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
w

e
e
d
s
)
:
s
u
b
s
o
i
l
 
m

i
x
 
(
5
0
:
5
0
)
 
o
v
e
r
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
s
i
t
e
 
s
u
b
s
o
i
l
 
l
a
y
e
r
.
 
N

o
 
i
m

p
o
r
t
e
d
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e

u
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
m

a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
s
p
e
c
i
e
s
 
r
i
c
h
 
g
r
a
s
s
 
a
r
e
a
s
.
 
F

i
n
a
l
 
p
r
e
p
a
r
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
e
d
e
d
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
s
o
 
a
s
 
t
o
 
c
r
e
a
t
e
 
a

f
i
n
e
 
t
i
l
t
h
 
s
u
r
f
a
c
e
 
s
u
i
t
a
b
l
e
 
f
o
r
 
s
e
e
d
i
n
g
.
 
N

o
 
p
r
e
-
s
e
e
d
i
n
g
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
s
e
r
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
b
e
 
a
p
p
l
i
e
d
.
 
S

e
e
d
i
n
g
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
n
 
p
r
e
f
e
r
a
b
l
y
 
i
n

S
p
r
i
n
g
 
(
E

a
r
l
y
 
M

a
r
c
h
 
t
o
 
l
a
t
e
 
J
u
n
e
)
 
o
r
 
i
f
 
n
o
t
 
f
e
a
s
i
b
l
e
 
i
n
 
A

u
t
u
m

n
 
(
M

i
d
 
A

u
g
u
s
t
 
t
o
 
O

c
t
o
b
e
r
)
.
 
W

h
e
r
e
 
s
o
w

i
n
g
 
r
a
t
e
s
 
a
r
e
 
l
o
w

 
a
n
d
 
s
o
w

i
n
g

i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
n
 
b
y
 
h
a
n
d
 
b
r
o
a
d
-
c
a
s
t
i
n
g
,
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
m

i
x
 
t
h
e
 
s
e
e
d
 
e
v
e
n
l
y
 
w

i
t
h
 
a
 
f
i
n
e
,
 
d
r
y
 
s
a
n
d
 
t
o
 
b
u
l
k
 
u
p
 
t
h
e

s
o
w

i
n
g
 
m

i
x
t
u
r
e
.
 
S

e
e
d
i
n
g
 
b
y
 
t
h
i
s
 
m

e
t
h
o
d
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
o
n
l
y
 
b
e
 
u
n
d
e
r
t
a
k
e
n
 
o
n
 
c
a
l
m

 
d
a
y
s
 
w

i
t
h
 
n
o
 
w

i
n
d
.
 
A

f
t
e
r
 
s
e
e
d
i
n
g
,
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
a
r
e
 
t
o
 
b
e

h
a
n
d
 
r
a
k
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
l
i
g
h
t
l
y
 
r
o
l
l
e
d
.
 
T

h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
t
a
k
e
 
t
h
e
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
 
p
r
e
c
a
u
t
i
o
n
s
 
t
o
 
e
n
s
u
r
e
 
a
l
l
 
g
r
a
s
s
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
a
r
e
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
e
d

t
h
r
o
u
g
h
o
u
t
 
t
h
e
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
m

e
n
t
 
p
e
r
i
o
d
,
 
w

i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
c
h
e
s
t
n
u
t
 
p
a
l
e
 
f
e
n
c
i
n
g
 
w

h
e
r
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
.
 
T

h
e
 
c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
e
n
s
u
r
e
 
t
h
a
t

a
l
l
 
s
e
e
d
e
d
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
a
r
e
 
w

a
t
e
r
e
d
 
f
u
l
l
y
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
t
i
m

e
 
o
f
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
t
o
 
t
h
e
 
f
u
l
l
 
c
u
l
t
i
v
a
t
e
d
 
d
e
p
t
h
,
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
a
t
 
s
u
f
f
i
c
i
e
n
t
 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t
 
w

a
t
e
r
i
n
g

i
s
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
t
o
 
e
n
s
u
r
e
 
h
e
a
l
t
h
y
 
e
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
m

e
n
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
g
r
a
s
s
 
s
w

a
r
d
.

T
h

i
c
k
e
t
 
P

l
a
n

t
i
n

g

G
e
n
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
c
l
e
a
r
 
a
n
y
 
s
u
r
f
a
c
e
 
v
e
g
e
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
e
d
 
w

o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
c
k
e
t
 
a
r
e
a
s
,
 
u
t
i
l
i
s
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
p
r
i
e
t
a
r
y
 
h
e
r
b
i
c
i
d
e
 
w

h
e
r
e

a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
s
 
i
n
t
o
 
i
s
o
l
a
t
e
d
 
p
r
e
-
p
r
e
p
a
r
e
d
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
p
i
t
s
,
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
l
l
y
 
3
0
0
 
x
 
3
0
0
 
x
 
4
5
0
m

m
 
d
e
e
p
 
o
r
 
2
0
0
m

m
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r

t
h
a
n
 
t
h
e
 
r
o
o
t
s
t
o
c
k
,
 
w

h
i
c
h
e
v
e
r
 
i
s
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r
,
 
b
a
c
k
f
i
l
l
i
n
g
 
w

i
t
h
 
e
i
t
h
e
r
 
e
x
i
s
t
i
n
g
 
r
e
t
a
i
n
e
d
 
s
i
t
e
 
s
o
u
r
c
e
d
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
(
f
r
e
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
w

e
e
d
s
)
 
o
r

i
m

p
o
r
t
e
d
 
t
o
p
s
o
i
l
 
(
s
a
n
d
y
 
l
o
a
m

,
 
G

e
n
e
r
a
l
 
P

u
r
p
o
s
e
 
g
r
a
d
e
 
t
o
 
B

S
3
8
8
2
:
2
0
0
7
)
 
o
r
 
a
 
c
o
m

b
i
n
a
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
t
w

o
 
a
s
 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
r
y
.

I
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
e
 
a
 
s
o
i
l
 
c
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
e
r
/
a
m

e
l
i
o
r
a
n
t
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
f
o
r
m

 
o
f
 
p
e
a
t
 
f
r
e
e
 
t
r
e
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
h
r
u
b
 
c
o
m

p
o
s
t
 
o
r
 
w

e
l
l
 
r
o
t
t
e
d
 
s
p
e
n
t
 
m

u
s
h
r
o
o
m

c
o
m

p
o
s
t
 
i
n
t
o
 
b
a
c
k
f
i
l
l
 
m

a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 
a
t
 
t
h
e
 
r
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
5
L
 
p
e
r
 
p
i
t
,
 
i
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
a
 
s
l
o
w

 
r
e
l
e
a
s
e
 
f
e
r
t
i
l
i
s
e
r
 
e
.
g
.
 
E

n
m

a
g
 
(
o
r
 
s
i
m

i
l
a
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
)
 
a
t

a
 
r
a
t
e
 
o
f
 
5
g
 
p
e
r
 
p
i
t
.
 
E

n
s
u
r
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
c
o
n
f
o
r
m

s
 
t
o
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
m

a
t
r
i
x
 
w

h
e
r
e
 
a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
 
a
n
d
 
i
n
 
a
l
l
 
o
t
h
e
r
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
a
p
p
e
a
r
s
 
r
a
n
d
o
m

 
/

n
a
t
u
r
a
l
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
t
 
f
o
r
m

a
l
 
i
n
 
a
c
c
o
r
d
a
n
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
t
h
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
p
r
o
p
o
s
a
l
 
l
a
y
o
u
t
s
.
 
N

o
t
e
 
m

a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
i
c
k
e
t
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
w

i
l
l
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d

o
u
t
 
b
y
 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
 
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
n
t
s
.

P
l
a
n

t
 
P

r
o

t
e
c
t
i
o

n

A
l
l
 
w

o
o
d
l
a
n
d
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
c
k
e
t
 
a
r
e
a
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
f
u
l
l
y
 
e
n
c
l
o
s
e
d
 
b
y
 
m

i
n
.
 
9
0
0
m

m
 
h
i
g
h
 
r
a
b
b
i
t
 
p
r
o
o
f
 
f
e
n
c
i
n
g
,
 
s
u
p
p
l
i
e
d
 
a
s
 
m

i
n
.
 
1
9
 
G

a
u
g
e

(
1
.
2
m

m
)
 
g
a
l
v
a
n
i
s
e
d
 
m

e
s
h
 
w

i
t
h
 
m

a
x
.
 
3
1
m

m
 
o
p
e
n
i
n
g
s
,
 
n
a
i
l
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
g
a
l
v
a
n
i
s
e
d
 
2
0
m

m
 
s
t
a
p
l
e
s
 
t
o
 
5
0
-
7
5
m

m
 
d
i
a
m

e
t
e
r
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d

t
i
m

b
e
r
 
s
t
a
k
e
s
 
a
t
 
1
.
5
m

 
c
e
n
t
r
e
s
,
 
i
n
c
o
r
p
o
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
3
N

o
.
 
h
o
r
i
z
o
n
t
a
l
 
g
a
l
v
a
n
i
s
e
d
 
s
t
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
w

i
r
e
s
.
 
M

e
s
h
 
f
e
n
c
e
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
h
e
e
l
e
d
 
i
n
t
o
 
g
r
o
u
n
d

1
5
0
m

m
 
b
e
l
o
w

 
g
r
o
u
n
d
 
l
e
v
e
l
.
 
S

t
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
p
o
s
t
s
 
o
f
 
1
0
0
m

m
 
d
i
m

.
 
t
i
m

b
e
r
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
e
d
 
e
v
e
r
y
 
5
0
m

 
o
r
 
a
t
 
e
v
e
r
y
 
t
u
r
n
 
o
f
 
d
i
r
e
c
t
i
o
n

9
0
 
d
e
g
r
e
e
s
 
o
r
 
g
r
e
a
t
e
r
.
 
A

l
l
 
s
t
a
n
d
a
r
d
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
m

i
n
.
 
2
2
5
m

m
 
h
i
g
h
 
x
 
1
2
-
1
5
m

m
 
d
i
a
m

.
 
p
r
o
p
r
i
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
a
s
t
i
c

s
t
r
i
m

m
e
r
/
v
o
l
e
 
g
u
a
r
d
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
s
m

a
l
l
 
/
 
f
e
a
t
h
e
r
e
d
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
m

i
n
.
 
1
2
0
0
m

m
 
h
i
g
h
 
x
 
8
0
-
1
1
0
m

m
 
d
i
a
m

.
 
p
r
o
p
r
i
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
a
s
t
i
c

m
e
s
h
 
t
r
e
e
 
g
u
a
r
d
/
s
h
e
l
t
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
m

i
n
.
 
2
5
m

m
 
s
q
u
a
r
e
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
s
o
f
t
w

o
o
d
 
t
i
m

b
e
r
 
s
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
d
 
f
i
x
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
p
l
a
s
t
i
c

c
a
b
l
e
 
t
i
e
s
.
 
N

B
:
-
 
S

h
o
u
l
d
 
r
e
d
 
o
r
 
f
a
l
l
o
w

 
d
e
e
r
 
r
e
s
i
d
e
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
o
c
a
l
i
t
y
 
t
h
e
 
t
r
e
e
 
g
u
a
r
d
s
/
s
h
e
l
t
e
r
s
 
s
h
o
u
l
d
 
b
e
 
i
n
c
r
e
a
s
e
d
 
i
n
 
h
e
i
g
h
t
 
t
o
 
1
.
8
m

.

A
l
l
 
b
u
s
h
y
 
t
h
i
c
k
e
t
 
s
h
r
u
b
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
p
r
o
t
e
c
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
m

i
n
.
 
6
0
0
m

m
 
h
i
g
h
 
x
 
1
7
0
-
2
0
0
m

m
 
d
i
e
m

,
 
p
r
o
p
r
i
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
a
s
t
i
c
 
m

e
s
h
 
s
h
r
u
b
 
s
h
e
l
t
e
r
s
 
/

g
u
a
r
d
s
 
a
n
d
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
d
 
i
n
 
p
l
a
c
e
 
w

i
t
h
 
t
r
e
a
t
e
d
 
s
o
f
t
w

o
o
d
 
t
i
m

b
e
r
 
s
t
a
k
e
 
a
n
d
 
p
l
a
s
t
i
c
 
c
a
b
l
e
 
t
i
e
s
.
 
A

l
l
 
s
i
n
g
l
e
 
s
t
e
m

 
t
h
i
c
k
e
t
 
t
r
a
n
s
p
l
a
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
e

p
r
o
t
e
c
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
m

i
n
.
 
4
5
0
m

m
 
h
i
g
h
 
x
 
5
0
m

m
 
p
r
o
p
r
i
e
t
a
r
y
 
p
l
a
s
t
i
c
 
s
p
i
r
a
l
 
g
u
a
r
d
s
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
m

i
n
.
 
1
2
-
1
4
I
b
 
x
 
9
0
0
m

m
 
l
o
n
g
 
b
a
m

b
o
o

c
a
n
e
.
 
A

l
l
 
t
r
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
t
h
i
c
k
e
t
 
p
l
a
n
t
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
a
 
m

i
n
.
 
5
0
0
m

m
 
s
q
u
a
r
e
,
 
w

o
v
e
n
 
p
o
l
y
p
r
o
p
y
l
e
n
e
 
m

u
l
c
h
 
m

a
t
 
s
e
c
u
r
e
l
y
 
p
e
g
g
e
d

i
n
 
p
l
a
c
e
.

M
a
i
n

t
e
n

a
n

c
e

E
s
t
a
b
l
i
s
h
m

e
n
t
 
m

a
i
n
t
e
n
a
n
c
e
 
f
o
r
 
a
l
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
f
o
r
 
5
 
y
e
a
r
s
 
f
r
o
m

 
P

r
a
c
t
i
c
a
l
 
C

o
m

p
l
e
t
i
o
n
 
(
f
i
r
s
t
 
y
e
a
r
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
b
y
 
i
n
s
t
a
l
l
i
n
g

c
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
o
r
)
 
t
o
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
e
 
w

e
e
d
 
c
o
n
t
r
o
l
,
 
w

a
t
e
r
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
r
e
p
l
a
c
e
m

e
n
t
 
o
f
 
f
a
i
l
u
r
e
s
 
t
o
 
o
r
i
g
i
n
a
l
 
s
p
e
c
i
f
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
p
l
a
n
t
i
n
g
 
s
e
a
s
o
n

f
o
l
l
o
w

i
n
g
 
f
a
i
l
u
r
e
.
 
A

l
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
 
m

a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
p
r
u
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
d
g
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
c
o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
t
r
a
i
n
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
e
d
g
e
d
 
w

i
t
h

m
i
n
i
m

u
m

 
2
 
t
r
i
m

s
 
p
e
r
 
y
e
a
r
.
 
A

l
l
 
p
l
a
n
t
 
m

a
t
e
r
i
a
l
 
t
o
 
r
e
c
e
i
v
e
 
a
n
n
u
a
l
 
p
r
u
n
i
n
g
 
a
n
d
 
g
r
o
u
n
d
c
o
v
e
r
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
t
r
a
i
n
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
e
d
g
e
d
 
w

i
t
h
 
m

i
n
i
m

u
m

2
 
t
r
i
m

s
 
p
e
r
 
y
e
a
r
.
 
M

o
w

i
n
g
 
i
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
a
r
r
i
e
d
 
o
u
t
 
u
s
i
n
g
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d
 
m

a
c
h
i
n
e
r
y
 
t
o
 
m

a
i
n
t
a
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
v
e
g
e
t
a
t
i
o
n
 
l
e
n
g
t
h
 
w

i
t
h
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
l
i
m

i
t
s
 
o
f
 
3
0

m
m

 
a
n
d
 
5
0
 
m

m
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
A

p
r
i
l
 
t
o
 
A

u
g
u
s
t
 
i
n
c
l
u
s
i
v
e
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
t
w

e
e
n
 
5
0
 
m

m
 
a
n
d
 
7
0
 
m

m
 
d
u
r
i
n
g
 
t
h
e
 
r
e
s
t
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
y
e
a
r
.

S
C

A
L

E
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

T
I
T

L
E

:

C
L

I
E

N
T

:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
T

A
T

U
S

:

D
W

G
 
N

O
:

R
E

V
:

N
O

T
E

:
 
T

h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
i
s
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
o
f
 
U

B
U

 
D

e
s
i
g
n
 
L
T

D
,
 
a
l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
s
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
d
.

D
o
 
n
o
t
 
s
c
a
l
e
 
f
r
o
m

 
t
h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g
,
 
e
x
c
e
p
t
 
f
o
r
 
p
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
s
 
o
n
l
y
.
 
A

l
l
 
d
i
m

e
n
s
i
o
n
s
/
l
e
v
e
l
s
 
t
o
 
b
e
 
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
.
 
U

B
U

D
e
s
i
g
n
 
L
T

D
 
a
c
c
e
p
t
 
n
o
 
l
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
 
l
o
s
s
 
o
r
 
d
a
m

a
g
e
 
o
f
 
w

h
a
t
s
o
e
v
e
r
 
n
a
t
u
r
e
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r
 
a
r
i
s
i
n
g
 
f
r
o
m

a
n
y
 
v
a
r
i
a
t
i
o
n
 
m

a
d
e
 
t
o
 
t
h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
o
r
 
i
n
 
t
h
e
 
e
x
e
c
u
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
w

o
r
k
 
t
o
 
w

h
i
c
h
 
i
t
 
r
e
l
a
t
e
s
 
w

h
i
c
h
 
h
a
s
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
e
n
 
r
e
f
e
r
r
e
d
 
t
o

t
h
e
m

 
a
n
d
 
t
h
e
i
r
 
p
r
i
o
r
 
a
p
p
r
o
v
a
l
 
o
b
t
a
i
n
e
d
.

L
A

N
D

 
W

E
S

T
 
O

F
 
C

U
P

E
R

N
H

A
M

 
L
A

N
E

,

R
O

M
S

E
Y

P
L
A

N
T

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

S
T

R
A

T
L
A

N
D

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
S

1
:
2

0
0

@
A

1
1

0
/
0

5
/
2
0
2

0

1
7

1
8

1
7
1

8
-
P

P
-
3

0
0

P
L
A

N
N

I
N

G
C

U
B

U
 
D

e
s
i
g

n
 
L

T
D

7
a

 
W

i
n

t
e

x
 
H

o
u

s
e

,
 
E

a
s
t
o

n
 
L

a
n

e

B
u

s
i
n

e
s
s
 
P

a
r
k
,
 
E

a
s
t
o

n
 
L

a
n

e
,

W
i
n

c
h

e
s
t
e

r
,
 
H

a
n

t
s
,
 
S

O
2

3
 
7

R
Q

+
4

4
 
 
(
0

)
 
1

9
6

2
 
8

5
6

 
0

0
8

s
t
u

d
i
o

@
u

b
u

-
d

e
s
i
g

n
.
c
o

.
u

k

w
w

w
.
u

b
u

-
d

e
s
i
g

n
.
c
o

.
u

k

R
E

V
D

A
T

E
C

H
K

D
R

N
A

P
P

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

A
1

1
/
0

9
/
2

0

A
d

d
i
t
i
o

n
a

l
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
b

e
d

 
a

d
d

e
d

 
a

n
d

 
s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
c
h

a
n

g
e

d

M
A

N

B
2

1
/
1

0
/
2

0

A
d

d
i
t
i
o

n
a

l
 
t
r
e

e
 
a

d
d

e
d

 
a

n
d

 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
b

e
d

 
e

n
l
a

r
g

e
d

,
 
t
h

i
c
k
e

t
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
e

x
t
e

n
d

e
d

R
A

C
1

7
/
1

1
/
2

0
C

h
a

n
g

e
s
 
t
o

 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
b

e
d

M
A

R
A

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 32



4

0

.

7

4

0

4

1

.

0

5

4

4

0

.

0

1

0

S

t

a

S

t

a

S

t

a

S

t

a

p

o

p

o

m

p

m

p

f

h

s

c

r

s

3

9

.

7

4

8

3

9

.

4

8

4

S

t

a

S

t

a

t

o

p

 

7

0

.

5

8

g

a

t

e

s

c

i

c

e

p

b

t

i

c

i

c
s

c

k

b

k

b

k

b

s

i

g

n

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

p

r

f

p

r

f

k

b

k

b

k

b

k

b

s

i

g

n

c

l

f

 

1

.

6

0

h

p

a

t

h

p

a

t

h

p

a

t

h

t

a

r

m

a

c

1

.

8

0

h

 

c

l

f

c

l

f

 

1

.

8

0

h

C

U

P

E

R

N

H

A

M

 

L

A

N

E

S

t

a

l

i

n

e

 

o

f

 

h

a

w

t

h

o

r

n

s

l

i

n

e

 

o

f

 

h

a

w

t

h

o

r

n

s

s

h

a

l

l

o

w

 

d

i

t

c

h

l

i

n

e

 

o

f

 

h

a

w

t

h

o

r

n

s

1

.

1

0

h

 

b

w

f

1

.

1

0

h

 

b

w

f

1

.

1

0

h

 

c

l

f

1

.

1

0

h

 

c

l

f

1

.

1

0

h

 

c

l

f

r

s

g

r

a

s

s

g

r

a

s

s

g

r

a

s

s

g

r

a

s

s

g

r

a

s

s

s

h

a

l

l

o

w

 

d

i

t

c

h

s

t

u

m

p

s

a

p

l

i

n

g

s

 

&

 

s

c

r

u

b

s

a

p

l

i

n

g

s

 

&

 

s

c

r

u

b

l

i

m

e

l

i

m

e

l

i

m

e

l

i

m

e

l

i

m

e

l

i

m

e

4

0

.

8

8

0

S

t

a

4

0

.

9

3

5

S

t

a

R5
.0

0

R5.00

6.
00

W
HI

TE
 JU

N
CT

IO
N

 S
PL

IT
TE

R 
M

AR
KI

N
GS

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
FO

O
TW

AY

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
PE

DE
ST

RI
AN

 C
RO

SS
IN

G
PO

IN
T 

W
IT

H 
TA

CT
IL

E 
PA

VI
N

G.

N
EW

 1
.8

M
 P

ED
ES

TR
IA

N
FO

O
TW

AY
 W

IT
H 

CR
O

SS
IN

G
PO

IN
T 

AN
D 

TA
CT

IL
E 

PA
VI

N
G.

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
KE

RB

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
TA

CT
IL

E 
PA

VI
N

G

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
DR

O
PP

ED
 K

ER
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
DR

O
PP

ER
 K

ER
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
FO

O
TW

AY
ED

GI
N

G

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
TA

CT
IL

E 
PA

VI
N

G

LE
GE

N
D

R
e

v
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n
D

a
t
e

A
3

C
h

k

C
l
i
e

n
t

P
r
o

j
e

c
t

D
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
T

i
t
l
e

D
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
S

t
a

t
u

s

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
N

o
.

S
i
z
e

R
e
v

D
r
n

A
p

p

D
a
t
e

D
r
a

w
n

S
c
a

l
e

D
e

s
i
g

n
e

d

T
h

i
s
 
d

r
a

w
i
n

g
 
h

a
s
 
b

e
e

n
 
s
p

e
c
i
f
i
c
a

l
l
y
 
p

r
e

p
a

r
e

d
 
t
o

 
m

e
e

t
 
t
h

e
 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

m
e

n
t
s
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
n

a
m

e
d

 
c
l
i
e

n
t
 
a

n
d

m
a

y
 
c
o

n
t
a

i
n

 
d

e
s
i
g

n
 
a

n
d

 
i
n

n
o

v
a

t
i
v
e

 
f
e

a
t
u

r
e

s
 
w

h
i
c
h

 
d

i
f
f
e

r
 
f
r
o

m
 
c
o

n
v
e

n
t
i
o

n
a

l
 
d

e
s
i
g

n
 
s
t
a

n
d

a
r
d

s
.

2
2

6
1

-
0

0
2

W
:
 
w

w
w

.
c
a
d
-
p
r
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
.
c
o
m

E
:
 
i
n
f
o
@

c
a
d
-
p
r
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
.
c
o
m

T
: 0

12
73

 6
61

75
3

#c
ad

p
r
e
c
i
s
i
o
n
 
 
|

F
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
 
 
|
 
 
L
i
n
k
e
d
-
I
N

PLOT DATE:06 July 2020 16:20:51

W
O

O
D

P
E

C
K

E
R

S

C
U

P
E

R
N

H
A

M
 
L

A
N

E
,
 
 
R

O
M

S
E

Y

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
A

C
C

E
S

S
 
A

N
D

P
E

D
E

S
T

R
I
A

N
 
C

R
O

S
S

I
N

G

F
O

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G

A
S

N
C

J
U

L
 
2
0
2
0

1
:
2
5
0

-

-
0

6
/
0

7
/
2

0
O

R
I
G

I
N

A
L

 
I
S

S
U

E
A

S
N

C
N

C

0
5

1
0
 
m

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 33



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
50

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 S
ite

 L
a

yo
ut

 
&

 R
o

o
f P

la
n

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_1
00

2
20

01

2
2

1
1

4
4

3
3

C U P E R N H A M  L A N E

5

6

6

V

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S

A
PP

RO
V

ED
 U

N
D

ER
RE

F:
 1

5-
00

67
9-

O
UT

S
(IN

D
IC

A
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

)

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

W
EL

LI
N

G
S

A
PP

RO
V

ED
 U

N
D

ER
RE

F:
 1

9/
01

01
9/

O
BL

S
(IN

D
IC

A
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

)

8

9

9

8

7

7

5

W
O

O
D

PE
C

KE
RS

5

8

6

7

9

2
1

3
4

5

C
A

RP
O

RT

6

C
A

RP
O

RT

BINS & CYCLES

BINS & CYCLESBINS & CYCLES

BINS & CYCLES

BI
N

S 
&

 C
YC

LE
S

BI
N

S 
&

 C
YC

LE
S

BINS & CYCLES

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

 S
H

O
W

N
 A

S
IN

D
IC

A
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

. F
O

R
D

ET
A

IL
S 

O
F 

LA
N

D
SC

A
PI

N
G

SE
E 

PL
A

N
S 

BY
 U

BU
 D

ES
IG

N
.

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN G

A
RD

EN

S/
T

S/
T

S/
T

S/
T

S/T

S/T

S/T

S/T

S/T

S/T

S/T

EX
IS

TIN
G

 T
RE

ES

EX
IS

TIN
G

 T
RE

E

EX
IS

TIN
G

 T
RE

E

no
rth

0
2

5
15

m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 34



d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
20

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 S
ite

 S
e

c
tio

ns
a

nd
 E

le
va

tio
ns

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_3
00

1
20

01

0
1

3
6m

ke
y 

p
la

n

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
Ti

tle

38
00

0

SI
TE

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 A

-A

SI
TE

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 B

-B B-
B

A
-A

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 35



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
20

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 S
ite

 S
e

c
tio

ns

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_3
00

2
20

01

0
1

3
6m

ke
y 

p
la

n

SI
TE

 S
EC

TI
O

N
 C

-C

C
-C

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 36



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
50

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

To
p

o
g

ra
p

hi
c

a
l S

ur
ve

y

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_0
00

2
20

01

p
o

p
o

40
.2

1

40
.2

4

40
.5

1
m

p m
p

fh 40
.7

2

40
.6

7

40
.7

0

40
.5

9

40
.6

6

40
.6

5

sc 40
.7

2

40
.6

5

40
.5

8

40
.4

7

40
.4

4

40
.3

9

40
.3

3

40
.1

9

40
.0

6

39
.8

9

40
.0

8

40
.0

9

40
.3

0

40
.2

6

40
.1

0

40
.3

4

40
.2

3
40

.5
3

40
.1

6

40
.4

5

40
.4

2

40
.4

3

40
.1

740
.3

1

40
.3

9

40
.4

5

40
.5

5

40
.5

2

40
.5

0

40
.4

6

40
.3

8

40
.5

6

40
.7

4

40
.7

7

40
.7

6

40
.6

6

40
.6

2

40
.3

8

40
.3

2

40
.4

0

40
.6

9

40
.8

1

40
.7

3

40
.6

1

40
.5

5

rs40
.8

7

40
.6

2
40

.5
4

39
.7

8

39
.7

8

39
.9

7

39
.9

7

40
.2

4

40
.1

3

39
.5

0

40
.0

6

39
.5

1

39
.5

2

39
.2

4

39
.2

4
39

.3
7

39
.3

7

39
.1

5

39
.1

5

39
.0

7

39
.0

7

39
.1

0

39
.8

8

39
.8

8

39
.9

9

39
.4

9

39
.8

9

39
.5

2

39
.2

3

39
.4

3

39
.4

4
38

.3
3

rid
ge

42
.6

2

39
.4

8

39
.5

1

39
.2

2

39
.3

0

39
.4

6

39
.0

9

39
.2

8

39
.2

6

39
.0

9

39
.1

4

39
.2

5

39
.1

9
39

.0
9

38
.6

6 37
.2

1

38
.8

5

38
.5

9

38
.3

5

38
.4

4

37
.1

1

37
.1

0

36
.9

2

38
.8

4

38
.6

3

38
.2

8

38
.5

5
38

.5
5

38
.5

9

37
.2

3

38
.3

3

38
.4

0

37
.1

9

36
.9

9

g
a

te
36

.9
8

37
.0

9

37
.6

2

37
.4

4
38

.7
5

38
.6

6

38
.8

0

38
.7

6

38
.4

4

38
.6

9

38
.7

2

38
.8

4

38
.7

0

to
p

 7
0.

58

g
a

te

40
.3

0

40
.5

7

40
.6

6

40
.7

2

40
.7

9
40

.6
4

40
.5

8

40
.5

8

40
.6

2

40
.6

8sc40
.6

2

ic 40
.3

5

40
.1

4

40
.3

9

40
.6

3

40
.8

0

ep40
.6

5

40
.4

9

40
.8

1

40
.4

2

40
.8

5

40
.9

7

41
.0

0

40
.7

2

40
.2

8

40
.4

1

40
.3

7

40
.6

2

40
.4

7

40
.7

840
.6

4

40
.7

5

40
.9

3

40
.8

8

b
tic

40
.8

4

ic
40

.7
2 40
.6

6

40
.8

8

39
.9

3

39
.8

4

40
.2

7

sc

kb

kb kb

sig
n

El
 S

ub
 S

ta
p

rf

p
rf

kb

kb

kb

kb

sig
n

clf 1.60h

p
a

th

p
a

th

p
a

th

ta
rm

a
c

1.
80

h 
cl

f

cl
f 1

.8
0h

Cupernham Lane

line of hawthorns

line of hawthorns

shallow ditch

line of hawthorns

1.
50

h 
w

m
f

1.
50

h 
w

m
f

1.
50

h 
w

m
f

1.
10

h 
b

w
f

1.
10

h 
b

w
f

1.
10

h 
b

w
f1.

10
h 

b
w

f

1.
10

h 
cl

f

1.
10

h 
cl

f

1.
10

h 
cl

f

1.
10

h 
cl

f

gr
a

ss

rs

gr
a

ss

gr
a

ss

gr
a

ss

gr
a

ss

gr
a

ss

gr
a

ss

shallow ditch

st
um

p

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

sa
p

lin
g

s &
 s

cr
ub

oa
k

g
a

te

1.
50

h 
cb

f

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e w
illo

w

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e

lim
e

lim
elim

e

40
.7

1

no
rth

0
2

5
15

m

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 37



2
2

1
1

4
4

3
3

5

6

6

V

8

9

9

8

7

7

5

5

8

6

7

9

2
1

3
4

5
G
A
RA

G
E

6
G
A
RA

G
E

po

po

40
.2

1

40
.2

4

40
.5

1
m

p m
p

fh 40
.7

2

40
.6

7

40
.7

0

40
.5

9

40
.6

6

40
.6

5

sc 40
.7

2

40
.6

5

40
.5

8

40
.4

7

40
.4

4

40
.3

9

40
.3

3

40
.1

9

40
.0

6

39
.8

9

40
.0

8

40
.0

9

40
.3

0

40
.2

6

40
.1

0

40
.3

4

40
.2

3
40

.5
3

40
.1

6

40
.4

5

40
.4

2

40
.4

3

40
.1

740
.3

1

40
.3

9

40
.4

5

40
.5

5

40
.5

2

40
.5

0

40
.4

6

40
.3

8

40
.5

6

40
.7

4

40
.7

7

40
.7

6

40
.6

6

40
.6

2

40
.3

8
40

.3
2

40
.4

0

40
.6

9

40
.8

1

40
.7

3

40
.6

1

40
.5

5

rs40
.8

7

40
.6

2
40

.5
4

39
.7

8

39
.7

8

39
.9

7

39
.9

7

40
.2

4

40
.1

3

39
.5

0

40
.0

6

39
.5

1

39
.5

2

39
.2

4

39
.2

4
39

.3
7

39
.3

7

39
.1

5

39
.1

5

39
.0

7

39
.0

7

39
.1

0

39
.8

8

39
.8

8

39
.9

9

39
.4

9

39
.8

9

39
.5

2

39
.2

3

39
.4

3

39
.4

4
38

.3
3

rid
ge

39
.4

8

39
.5

1

39
.2

2

39
.3

0

39
.4

6

39
.0

9

39
.2

8

39
.2

6

39
.0

9

39
.1

4

39
.2

5

39
.1

9
39

.0
9

38
.6

6 37
.2

1

38
.8

5

38
.5

9

38
.3

5

38
.4

4

37
.1

1

37
.1

0

36
.9

2

38
.8

4

38
.6

3

38
.2

8

38
.5

5
38

.5
5

38
.5

9

37
.2

3

38
.3

3

38
.4

0

37
.1

9

36
.9

9

ga
te

36
.9

8

37
.0

9

37
.6

2

37
.4

4
38

.7
5

38
.6

6

38
.8

0

38
.7

6

38
.4

4

38
.6

9

38
.7

2

38
.8

4

38
.7

0

ga
te

40
.3

0

40
.5

7

40
.6

6
40

.5
8

40
.6

2

40
.6

8sc40
.6

2

ic 40
.3

5

40
.1

4

40
.3

9

40
.6

3

40
.8

0

ep40
.6

5

40
.4

9

40
.8

1

40
.4

2

40
.8

5

40
.9

7

41
.0

0

40
.7

2

40
.2

8

40
.4

1

40
.6

2

40
.4

7

40
.7

840
.6

4

ic
40

.7
2 40
.6

6

39
.9

3

39
.8

4

40
.2

7

sc

kb

kb kb

si
gn

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

kb
kb

si
gn

Cupernham Lane

shallow ditch

rs

ga
te

0 
M

et
re

s
5

10
15

20

Sc
al

e:
 1

:2
50

 @
 A

1

T1
4

T1
3

T1
2

T1
1

T1
0 T9

A4
1

A4
1

A4
1

A4
1

A4
1

A4
1

A4
1

T4
2

T4
3

T4
6

T4
5

T5
6

T4
7

T4
9

T5
1

T5
2

H
44

H
44

H
55

H
55

T5
3

T5
4

T5
7

H
55

H
55

T5
0

T4
8

Tr
ee

s 
to

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

 la
yo

ut

TX

Pr
ot

ec
tiv

e 
ba

rri
er

/fe
nc

in
g

TX
BS

 c
at

eg
or

y 
B

Es
tim

at
ed

 tr
ee

 p
os

iti
on

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

d 
on

 o
rig

in
al

la
nd

 s
ur

ve
y 

an
d/

or
 a

dj
us

te
d 

cr
ow

n 
sp

re
ad

s

TX TX

BS
 c

at
eg

or
y 

C

BS
 c

at
eg

or
y 

U

Tr
ee

s o
f m

od
er

at
e 

qu
al

ity

Tr
ee

s o
f l

ow
 q

ua
lit

y

Tr
ee

s u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r r

et
en

tio
n

R
oo

t p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 (R
PA

) b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

fo
r

ca
te

go
ry

 B
 tr

ee
s

R
oo

t p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 (R
PA

) b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

fo
r

ca
te

go
ry

 C
 tr

ee
s

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ex

cl
us

io
n 

zo
ne

 (C
EZ

)

Pr
op

os
ed

 e
xt

ra
 h

ea
vy

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
tre

e 
pl

an
tin

g

Tr
ee

 N
o

Sp
ec

ie
s

C
at

eg
or

y
R

PA
R

ad
iu

s
Tr

ee
 W

or
ks

Al
l r

et
ai

ne
d

tre
es

 &
he

dg
es

C
ar

ry
 o

ut
 s

af
et

y 
ch

ec
k 

an
d 

lif
t

ov
er

 s
ite

 to
 3

-4
m

 a
s

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

T9
O

ak
B

7.
8

-

T1
0

Po
pl

ar
B

11
.4

R
em

ov
al

 o
f i

vy
 a

nd
 re

in
sp

ec
t

T1
1

Po
pl

ar
B

10
.8

R
em

ov
al

 o
f i

vy
 a

nd
 re

in
sp

ec
t

T1
2

Po
pl

ar
B

6.
6

-

T1
3

Po
pl

ar
B

6.
0

-

T1
4

Po
pl

ar
C

5.
4

-

A4
1

Po
pl

ar
C

1.
8

Fe
ll

T4
2

Po
pl

ar
B

13
.8

-

T4
3

Po
pl

ar
C

12
.3

Fe
ll

H
44

H
aw

th
or

n
C

1.
8

-

T4
5

Po
pl

ar
U

12
.0

Fe
ll

T4
6

Po
pl

ar
C

11
.1

Fe
ll

T4
7

Po
pl

ar
B

11
.4

Fe
ll

T4
8

Po
pl

ar
C

2.
4

Fe
ll

T4
9

Po
pl

ar
B

11
.4

Fe
ll

T5
0

G
oa

t w
illo

w
C

7.
8

Fe
ll

T5
1

Po
pl

ar
B

8.
7

-

T5
2

Po
pl

ar
B

8.
4

-

T5
3

Po
pl

ar
C

6.
9

-

T5
4

Po
pl

ar
C

8.
4

Fe
ll

H
55

H
aw

th
or

n
C

2.
4

-

T5
6

Po
pl

ar
U

6.
6

Fe
ll

T5
7

Po
pl

ar
C

8.
4

Fe
ll

Tr
ee

 s
ch

ed
ul

e

w
w

w
.b

ar
re

llt
re

ec
ar

e.
co

.u
k

Pr
ov

id
ed

 P
la

n 
R

ef
s:

  1
37

87
/S

1 
R

ev
 A

 &
 2

00
1_

10
02

 R
ev

 E

Pe
rm

is
si

on
 i

s 
gr

an
te

d 
to

 s
ca

le
 f

ro
m

 t
hi

s 
dr

aw
in

g
fo

r 
Lo

ca
l 

Au
th

or
ity

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 p

ur
po

se
s

re
la

tin
g 

to
 tr

ee
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

on
ly

.  
 W

he
re

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 th

is
 d

ra
w

in
g 

is
 to

 b
e 

re
ad

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n
w

ith
 t

he
 a

rb
or

ic
ul

tu
ra

l r
ep

or
t. 

Th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
is

 t
he

co
py

rig
ht

 o
f  

Ba
rre

ll 
Tr

ee
 C

on
su

lta
nc

y 
20

20
.

Th
is

 d
ra

w
in

g 
to

 b
e 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 in

 c
ol

ou
r o

nl
y.

Ba
rre

ll 
Pl

an
 R

ef
:1

81
68

-B
T4

c

Tr
ee

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pl
an

Lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 tr

ee
s,

 c
at

eg
or

is
at

io
n 

& 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n/

m
an

ag
em

en
t

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r l
an

d 
w

es
t o

f C
up

er
nh

am
 L

an
e,

 R
om

se
y,

H
am

ps
hi

re
.

M
on

ito
rin

g 
tr

ee
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
Al

w
ay

s:

SG
N 

1

ü
ha

ve
 a

 p
re

-c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t m

ee
tin

g
w

ith
 th

e 
tr

ee
 co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 b
ef

or
e

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ta
rt

s
ü

us
e 

th
e 

tr
ee

 co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 to

 re
gu

la
rly

ch
ec

k 
th

at
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
re

m
ai

ns
 fi

t f
or

pu
rp

os
e

ü
us

e 
th

e 
tr

ee
 co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 to
 su

pe
rv

ise
w

or
k 

in
 R

PA
s

ü
ke

ep
 a

 w
rit

te
n 

re
co

rd
 o

f s
up

er
vi

sio
n

ü
in

st
al

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

be
fo

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

st
ar

ts
ü

m
ak

e 
su

re
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
is 

fit
 fo

r
pu

rp
os

e,
 i.

e.
 it

 p
re

ve
nt

s d
am

ag
e 

to
tr

ee
s a

nd
 so

il
ü

ke
ep

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 u
nt

il 
th

er
e 

is
no

 ri
sk

 to
 tr

ee
s

ü
ge

t w
rit

te
n 

pe
rm

iss
io

n 
to

 m
ov

e 
or

re
m

ov
e 

an
y 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n

Fe
nc

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
tr

ee
s

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N 

2

In
st

al
lin

g 
se

rv
ice

s i
n 

RP
As

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N 

11

ü
us

e 
th

e 
tr

ee
 co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 to
 su

pe
rv

ise
w

or
k 

in
 R

PA
s

ü
se

le
ct

 th
e 

le
as

t d
am

ag
in

g 
op

tio
n

w
he

n 
in

st
al

lin
g 

se
rv

ice
s, 

so
 p

rio
rit

ise
tr

en
ch

le
ss

, o
ve

r b
ro

ke
n 

tr
en

ch
 o

ve
r

co
nt

in
uo

us
 tr

en
ch

ü
ha

nd
-d

ig
 tr

en
ch

es
 if

 tr
en

ch
le

ss
 is

 n
ot

fe
as

ib
le

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

in
 R

PA
s

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N 

12

ü
us

e 
th

e 
tr

ee
 co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 to
 su

pe
rv

ise
w

or
k 

in
 R

PA
s

ü
av

oi
d 

ra
isi

ng
 g

ro
un

d 
le

ve
ls 

w
ith

in
1m

 o
f t

he
 tr

un
ks

 o
f r

et
ai

ne
d 

tr
ee

s

Po
llu

tio
n 

co
nt

ro
l

Al
w

ay
s:

SG
N 

4

ü
ke

ep
 to

xic
 p

ro
du

ct
s a

w
ay

 fr
om

 R
PA

s

M
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
ea

ch
 S

ite
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

No
te

 (S
GN

) c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 a
 p

rin
te

d 
ha

rd
 co

py
co

m
pi

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

SG
Ns

, M
an

ua
l f

or
 M

an
ag

in
g 

Tr
ee

s 
O

n 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

ite
s 

ve
rs

io
n 

2.
1,

  i
ss

ue
d 

to
th

e 
Si

te
 M

an
ag

er
 a

t t
he

 p
re

-c
om

m
en

ce
m

en
t s

ite
 m

ee
tin

g 
(N

ot
e:

  T
hi

s s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

ta
in

ed
 o

n 
sit

e
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

du
ra

tio
n 

of
 w

or
ks

). 
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, a

n 
el

ec
tr

on
ic 

pd
f c

om
pi

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

th
e 

SG
Ns

, w
as

su
bm

itt
ed

 w
ith

 th
is 

dr
aw

in
g 

to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
ity

 a
nd

 th
e 

cli
en

t. 
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

el
y,

 a
 p

df
 o

f e
ac

h
SG

N 
ca

n 
be

 d
ow

nl
oa

de
d 

by
:

1.
cli

ck
in

g 
th

e 
im

ag
e 

lin
ks

 in
 th

e 
el

ec
tr

on
ic 

pd
f v

er
sio

n 
of

 th
is 

pl
an

;
2.

ho
ld

in
g 

a 
m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 Q

R 
(Q

ui
ck

 R
es

po
ns

e)
 co

de
 re

ad
er

 o
ve

r t
he

 Q
R 

co
de

 in
 th

e 
pa

pe
r v

er
sio

n 
of

th
is 

pl
an

;  
or

,
3.

vi
sit

in
g 

ou
r w

eb
sit

e 
at

 h
tt
ps

:/
/w

w
w
.b
ar
re
llt
re
ec

ar
e.
co

.u
k/
re
so

ur
ce

s/
te
ch

ni
ca

l-g
ui
da

nc
e.

Ho
w

 to
 u

se
 p

la
n

At
te

nt
io

n 
LP

A 
Tr

ee
 O

ffi
ce

r -
 if

 y
ou

 w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 a

 't
o 

sc
al

e'
 p

rin
te

d 
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 th
is

 p
la

n 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s 

on
 0

14
25

 6
51

47
0 

or
 e

m
ai

l '
en

qu
iri

es
@

ba
rre

llt
re

ec
ar

e.
co

.u
k'

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 38

https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn01/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn02/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn11/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn12/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/
https://www.barrelltreecare.co.uk/resources/technical-guidance/sgn04/


d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

ke
y 

p
la

n

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 E
le

va
tio

ns
Pl

o
ts

 1
-4

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_3
01

1
20

01

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

PL
O

TS
 1

-4
FR

O
N

T 
(N

O
RT

H
) 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

 

PL
O

TS
 1

-4
RE

A
R 

(S
O

U
TH

) 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N
 

0
1

2
3m

6

6
6

6

153 4

6

6
6

6

1 253 48

1 2 3 4m
at

er
ia

ls

5 6

fa
ci

ng
 b

ric
kw

or
k

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

d
oo

rs
/w

in
d

ow
s

cl
a

y 
til

es

ob
sc

ur
e 

g
la

zin
g

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

ra
in

w
a

te
r g

oo
d

s

tim
b

er
 c

la
d

d
in

g

7
tim

b
er

 d
oo

rs
8

p
p

c 
st

ee
l

9
p

p
c 

a
lu

m
in

iu
m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 39



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 E
le

va
tio

ns
Pl

o
ts

 1
-4

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_3
01

2
20

01

0
1

2
3m

PL
O

T 
2

SI
D

E 
(W

ES
T)

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 

ke
y 

p
la

n

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

PL
O

T 
1

SI
D

E 
(E

A
ST

) 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N
 

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

1 2 3 4m
at

er
ia

ls

5 6

fa
ci

ng
 b

ric
kw

or
k

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

d
oo

rs
/w

in
d

ow
s

cl
a

y 
til

es

ob
sc

ur
e 

g
la

zin
g

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

ra
in

w
a

te
r g

oo
d

s

tim
b

er
 c

la
d

d
in

g

7
tim

b
er

 d
oo

rs
8

p
p

c 
st

ee
l

9
p

p
c 

a
lu

m
in

iu
m

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

PL
O

T 
4

SI
D

E 
(W

ES
T)

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 

PL
O

T 
3

SI
D

E 
(E

A
ST

) 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N
 

6
6

6
6

153 4153 4

153 4 153 4

8
8

2

8
8

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 40



4
4

3
3

SN
UG

 /
 S

TU
D

Y

W
C

H
A

LL

C
PD

 /
UT

SN
UG

 /
 S

TU
D

Y

W
C

H
A

LL

C
PD

 /
UT

SN
UG

 /
 S

TU
D

Y

W
C

H
A

LL

C
PD

 /
UT

3
4

1
2

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

WINDOW SEAT

b
in

s

cy
cl

es

b
in

s

cy
cl

es

b
in

s

cy
cl

es

b
in

s

cy
cl

es

SN
UG

 /
 S

TU
D

Y

W
C

H
A

LL

C
PD

 /
UT

G
A

RD
EN

G
A

RD
EN

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 G
ro

un
d

 F
lo

o
r

Pl
o

ts
 1

-4

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_2
00

1
20

01

no
rth

0
1

2
3m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 41



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 F
irs

t F
lo

o
r

Pl
o

ts
 1

-4

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_2
01

1
20

01

0
1

2
3m

no
rth

4
4

3
3

H
A

LL
BE

D
 2 BE

D
 1

BE
D

 3BA
TH

E/
S

H
A

LL
BE

D
 2

BE
D

 1

BE
D

 3

BA
TH

E/
S

H
A

LL
BE

D
 2

BE
D

 1

BE
D

 3

BA
TH

E/
S

H
A

LL
BE

D
 2 BE

D
 1

BE
D

 3BA
TH

E/
S

S/
T

S/
T

S/
T

S/
T

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 42



d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 E
le

va
tio

ns
Pl

o
ts

 5
 &

 6

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_3
02

1
20

01

0
1

2
3m

PL
O

TS
 5

 &
 6

 -
 R

EA
R 

(S
O

U
TH

-W
ES

T)
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

 

ke
y 

p
la

n

PL
O

TS
 5

 &
 6

 -
 S

ID
E 

(N
O

RT
H

-W
ES

T)
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

 

PL
O

TS
 5

 &
 6

 -
 S

ID
E 

(S
O

U
TH

-E
A

ST
) 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

 

1 2 3 4m
at

er
ia

ls

5 6

fa
ci

ng
 b

ric
kw

or
k

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

d
oo

rs
/w

in
d

ow
s

cl
a

y 
til

es

ob
sc

ur
e 

g
la

zin
g

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

ra
in

w
a

te
r g

oo
d

s

tim
b

er
 c

la
d

d
in

g

7
tim

b
er

 d
oo

rs
8

p
p

c 
st

ee
l

9
p

p
c 

a
lu

m
in

iu
m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

PL
O

TS
 5

 &
 6

 -
 F

RO
N

T 
(N

O
RT

H
-E

A
ST

) 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N
 

6
6

6

1253

4

1253

1253 4 1253 4

9

9

9

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 43



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 G
ro

un
d

 F
lo

o
r

Pl
o

ts
 5

&
6

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_2
00

2
20

01

north

0
1

2
3m

5

6
6

5

W
C

FA
M

ILY

KI
TC

HE
N

HA
LL

LIV
IN

G
D

IN
IN

G

UT
IL

ITY
C

PD

G
A

RD
EN

FIREPLACE

W
C

FA
M

IL
Y

KI
TC

HE
N

HA
LL

LI
V

IN
G

D
IN

IN
G

UT
IL

ITY

C
PD

G
A

RD
EN

FIREPLACE

5

6

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 44



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 F
irs

t F
lo

o
r

Pl
o

ts
 5

&
6

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_2
01

2
20

01

north

0
1

2
3m

5

6
6

5

E/
S BE

D
 1

BE
D

 2

BA
TH

C
PD

BE
D

 3

BE
D

 4

E/
S

S/
T

E/
S

BE
D

 1

BE
D

 2

BA
TH

C
PD

BE
D

 3

BE
D

 4

E/
S

S/
T

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 45



d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 E
le

va
tio

ns
Pl

o
ts

 7
-9

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_3
03

1
20

01

0
1

2
3m

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

PL
O

TS
 7

-9
FR

O
N

T 
(N

O
RT

H
-E

A
ST

) 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N
 

PL
O

TS
 7

-9
RE

A
R 

(S
O

U
TH

-W
ES

T)
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

 

ke
y 

p
la

n

1 253 4 153 48

1 2 3 4m
at

er
ia

ls

5 6

fa
ci

ng
 b

ric
kw

or
k

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

d
oo

rs
/w

in
d

ow
s

cl
a

y 
til

es

ob
sc

ur
e 

g
la

zin
g

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

ra
in

w
a

te
r g

oo
d

s

tim
b

er
 c

la
d

d
in

g

7
tim

b
er

 d
oo

rs
8

p
p

c 
st

ee
l

9
p

p
c 

a
lu

m
in

iu
m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 46



2
2

1
1

4
4

3
3

8 9 9877

C
PDW

C

H
A

LL

KI
TC

H
EN

 /
D

IN
IN

G

LI
V

IN
G

G
A

RD
EN

C
PD

W
C

H
A

LL

KI
TC

H
EN

 /
D

IN
IN

G

LI
V

IN
G

G
A

RD
EN

C
PDW

C

H
A

LL

KI
TC

H
EN

 /
D

IN
IN

G

LI
V

IN
G

G
A

RD
EN

8
7

9

cy
cl

es
cy

cl
es

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 G
ro

un
d

 F
lo

o
r

Pl
o

ts
 7

-9

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_2
00

3
20

01

north

0
1

2
3m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 47



d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

d
a

tu
m

   
38

00
0

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 E
le

va
tio

ns
Pl

o
ts

 7
-9

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_3
03

2
20

01

0
1

2
3m

PL
O

T 
7

SI
D

E 
(S

O
U

TH
-E

A
ST

) 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N
 

PL
O

T 
9

SI
D

E 
(N

O
RT

H
-W

ES
T)

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 

ke
y 

p
la

n

6

153 4
6

2

6

153 4
6

2 8

8

1 2 3 4m
at

er
ia

ls

5 6

fa
ci

ng
 b

ric
kw

or
k

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

d
oo

rs
/w

in
d

ow
s

cl
a

y 
til

es

ob
sc

ur
e 

g
la

zin
g

d
a

rk
 g

re
y 

ra
in

w
a

te
r g

oo
d

s

tim
b

er
 c

la
d

d
in

g

7
tim

b
er

 d
oo

rs
8

p
p

c 
st

ee
l

9
p

p
c 

a
lu

m
in

iu
m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 48



2
2

1
1

4
4

3
3

8 9 9877

E/
S

BE
D

 1

BE
D

 2

BA
TH

C
PD

E/
S

BE
D

 1

BE
D

 2

BA
TH

C
PD

E/
S

BE
D

 1

BE
D

 2

BA
TH

C
PD

S/
T

S/
T

S/
T

S/
T

S/
T

no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

1:
10

0 
@

 A
3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

Pr
o

p
o

se
d

 F
irs

t F
lo

o
r

Pl
o

ts
 7

-9

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_2
01

3
20

01

north

0
1

2
3m

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 49



no
te

s

©
 T

2 
ar

ch
ite

ct
s

d
o 

no
t s

ca
le

, e
xc

ep
t f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g

re
vi

si
o

ns

N
TS

 @
 A

3

M
a

y 
20

20

Pl
a

nn
in

g
La

nd
 W

e
st

 o
f:

C
up

e
rn

ha
m

 L
a

n
e

Ro
m

se
y

SO
51

 7
LE

St
ra

tla
nd

 E
st

a
te

s

V
ie

w
 o

n 
A

rr
iv

a
l

 

          
 

23
 C

ity
 B

us
in

es
s C

en
tre

H
yd

e 
St

re
et

W
in

ch
es

te
r

SO
23

 7
TA

T
01

96
2 

85
62

55

E
in

fo
@

T2
a

rc
hi

te
ct

s.c
om

w
w

w
.T

2a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

.c
o

m

pr
oj

ec
t

cl
ie

nt

jo
b 

no
._

d
rw

g 
no

.
d

ra
w

in
g

st
a

ge

sc
a

le

d
a

te

d
ra

w
n 

by

ch
ec

ke
d

 b
y

a
rc

hi
te

c
ts

re
vi

sio
n

Re
v

 

JTH
S

_6
00

0
20

01

La
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ho
w

n 
a

s 
in

d
ic

a
tiv

e
 o

nl
y.

 
Fo

r d
et

a
ils

 o
f l

a
nd

sc
a

p
in

g
 s

ee
 p

la
ns

 b
y 

UB
U

 D
es

ig
n.

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 50



 
 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. 20/02880/FULLS 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - SOUTH 
 REGISTERED 19.11.2020 
 APPLICANT Miss Harriet Parker 
 SITE 22 Lansdowne Close, Romsey, SO51 8FQ,  ROMSEY 

TOWN  
 PROPOSAL Porch with pitched roof (part retrospective) 
 AMENDMENTS None 
 CASE OFFICER Miss Ash James 
  

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 The application is presented to Southern Area Planning Committee in 

accordance with the Member and Officer Interests Protocol. 
 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The property is a two storey mid-terrace, located in the settlement boundary. 
 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 The proposal is for the erection of a porch with pitched roof, which is part 

retrospective.  
 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 None relevant. 
  
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 None. 
 
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 01.01.2021 
6.1 Romsey Town Council – No objection. 
 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP) 
 Policy COM2 – Settlement Hierarchy  

Policy E1- High Quality Development in the Borough 
Policy LHW4 – Amenity 
Policy T2 – Parking Standards 

 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 51

ITEM 8



 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 
  Principle of development 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the area 

 Impact on amenity of neighbouring property 

 Parking 
 

8.2 Principle of development 
The proposal lies within the settlement boundary as defined in the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan. As per policy COM2, development is acceptable 
on the condition that the proposal is in compliance with other polices of the 
Revised Local Plan. 

 
8.3 Impact of character and the appearance of the area 

The street scene comprises of several properties with porches of various sizes 
and designs. The proposal is considered to be appropriate in scale so as not to 
dominate the host dwelling or neighbouring properties, and any public views of 
the proposal would be seen in connection with the existing dwelling. The 
development proposes the use of matching materials where possible to the 
host dwelling to ensure the development is in keeping with the character of the 
area and integrate with local surroundings. As such, the proposal would be 
unlikely to have a detrimental impact on the character or appearance of the 
immediate area, in accordance with Policy E1 of the Test Valley Borough 
Council Revised Local Plan. 

 
8.4 Impact on amenity of neighbouring property 

By virtue of the size and design of the proposal, its position in relation to 
neighbouring properties and the street scene, it is unlikely to cause any 
significant adverse impacts on neighbouring properties in the way of an 
overbearing impact, loss of daylight or loss of sunlight and therefore accords 
with Policy LHW4 of the Test Valley Borough Council Revised Local Plan.  

 
8.5 Parking  

There is no additional accommodation proposed, and no alterations to parking 
arrangements, as such the proposal conforms with Policy T2 Annex G of the 
Test Valley Borough Council Revised Local Plan. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 The proposal is considered acceptable and in accordance with polices COM2, 

E1, LWH4, and T2 of the Test Valley Borough Council Revised Local Plan. 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 

complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans; Existing composite plan 001, Proposed composite plan 002, 
Site location plan 003, and Block plan 004 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 52



 Note to applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions. 
 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 53



1

7

8

F
is

h
 L

a
k
e

18

9
0

6
8

8
2

8
68

4

7
5

83

29

2
3

13

8
8

L
a

n
s

d
o

w
n

e
 C

lo
s
e

B
3

3
9

8

CL

C
R

D
U

T
T

O
N

'S
 R

O
A

D

18.6m

18.3m

W
ard B

dy

CLEMENTS
ST

THIS PLOT IS PRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S STATIONARY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

 TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2019

[ Siteplan

Not Set

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 54

pbpf_2
Rectangle

pbpf_3
Text Box
20/02880/FULLS



Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 55



In
te
rn
a
ls
 N
o
t 
S
u
v
e
ry
e
d

In
te
rn
a
ls
 N
o
t 
S
u
v
e
ry
e
d

u
n
s
te
d
 d
e
s
ig
n

D
ra
w
in
g
s
 b
y:

U
n
s
te
d
 D
e
s
ig
n
 L
td

1
6
  
H
a
z
e
l 
C
lo
s
e
,

C
h
a
n
d
le
rs
 F
o
rd

E
a
s
tl
e
ig
h

S
O
5
3
 5
R
F

T
e
l:
 0
2
3
8
0
2
7
4
7
2
0

F
a
x
: 
0
2
3
8
0
2
7
4
7
2
0

E
m
a
il:
 i
n
fo
@
U
n
s
te
d
D
e
s
ig
n
.c
o
.u
k

W
e
b
 S
it
e
 w
w
w
.U
n
s
te
d
D
e
s
ig
n
.c
o
.u
k

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
8
0
1
3
2
3
5

3
D
 C
o
m
p
u
te
r 
A
id
e
d

A
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
ra
l 
D
e
s
ig
n

A
2

D
ra
w
in
g

N
u
m
b
e
r

C
lie
n
t

S
h
e
e
t

S
iz
e

P
ro
je
c
t

N
u
m
b
e
r

S
ta
tu
s

D
a
te

D
ra
w
n
 b
y
:

S
c
a
le
:

P
u
rp
o
s
e
:

D
ra
w
in
g
 C
o
n
te
n
ts
:

C
lie
n
t:

P
ro
je
c
t 
A
d
d
re
s
s
:

U
ti
li
ti
e
s
/H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
/E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t:
  
It
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
t 
o
r 
th
e
ir

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 l
ia
s
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 U
ti
lit
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
, 
H
ig
h
w
a
y 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
ls
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 u
n
le
s
s
 U
n
s
te
d

D
e
s
ig
n
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
s
tu
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
c
t 
o
n
 y
o
u
r 
b
e
h
a
lf
.

C
o
p
y
ri
g
h
t:
  
T
h
e
 c
o
p
yr
ig
h
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 d
ra
w
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 o
f 
 U
n
s
te
d

D
e
s
ig
n
. 
It
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 c
o
p
ie
d
, 
a
lt
e
re
d
 o
r 
re
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
y 
fo
rm
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e

c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
o
f 
U
n
s
te
d
 D
e
s
ig
n
. 
It
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e

w
ri
tt
e
n
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
o
f 
U
n
s
te
d
 D
e
s
ig
n
.

D
im
e
n
s
io
n
s
: 
 A
ll 
d
im
e
n
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 o
n
 s
it
e
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t

o
f 
a
n
y
 w
o
rk
. 
D
o
 n
o
t 
s
c
a
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 d
ra
w
in
g
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
.

P
a
rt
y
 W
a
ll
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
: 
 I
t 
is
 t
h
e
 s
o
le
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
w
n
e
r 
o
r

th
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 d
ra
w
 u
p
 a
n
y
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
n
o
ti
c
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h

th
e
 P
a
rt
y 
W
a
ll 
A
c
t.
 T
h
is
 d
ra
w
in
g
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
.

R
e
v
is
io
n

0
0
1
P
A
R
K
E
R

1
2
5
5

E
X

J
A
U

 1
 :
 5
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 G
ro
u
n
d
 F
lo
o
r 
P
la
n

1
 1
 :
 5
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 F
ir
s
t 
F
lo
o
r 
P
la
n

2

 1
 :
 1
0
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 F
ro
n
t 
E
le
v
a
ti
o
n

3
 1
 :
 1
0
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 R
e
a
r 
E
le
v
a
ti
o
n

4
 1
 :
 1
0
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 S
id
e
 (
L
e
ft
) 
E
le
v
a
ti
o
n

5
 1
 :
 1
0
0

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 S
id
e
 (
R
ig
h
t)
 E
le
v
a
ti
o
n

6

M
R
S
 H
. 
P
A
R
K
E
R

2
2
 L
A
N
S
D
O
W
N
E
 C
L
O
S
E
,

R
O
M
S
E
Y
,

S
O
U
T
H
A
M
P
T
O
N
,

H
A
N
T
S
,

S
O
5
1
 8
F
Q
.

E
X
IS
T
IN
G
 F
L
O
O
R
 P
L
A
N
S
 A
N
D
 E
L
E
V
A
T
IO
N
S

P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 A
P
P
L
IC
A
T
IO
N

1
:5
0
 1
:1
0
0

1
1
th
 N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
2
0

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 56



In
te
rn
a
ls
 N
o
t 
S
u
rv
e
y
e
d

P
o
rc
h

In
te
rn
a
ls
 N
o
t 
S
u
rv
e
y
e
d

u
n
s
te
d
 d
e
s
ig
n

D
ra
w
in
g
s
 b
y:

U
n
s
te
d
 D
e
s
ig
n
 L
td

1
6
  
H
a
z
e
l 
C
lo
s
e
,

C
h
a
n
d
le
rs
 F
o
rd

E
a
s
tl
e
ig
h

S
O
5
3
 5
R
F

T
e
l:
 0
2
3
8
0
2
7
4
7
2
0

F
a
x
: 
0
2
3
8
0
2
7
4
7
2
0

E
m
a
il:
 i
n
fo
@
U
n
s
te
d
D
e
s
ig
n
.c
o
.u
k

W
e
b
 S
it
e
 w
w
w
.U
n
s
te
d
D
e
s
ig
n
.c
o
.u
k

C
o
m
p
a
n
y
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
8
0
1
3
2
3
5

3
D
 C
o
m
p
u
te
r 
A
id
e
d

A
rc
h
it
e
c
tu
ra
l 
D
e
s
ig
n

A
2

D
ra
w
in
g

N
u
m
b
e
r

C
lie
n
t

S
h
e
e
t

S
iz
e

P
ro
je
c
t

N
u
m
b
e
r

S
ta
tu
s

D
a
te

D
ra
w
n
 b
y
:

S
c
a
le
:

P
u
rp
o
s
e
:

D
ra
w
in
g
 C
o
n
te
n
ts
:

C
lie
n
t:

P
ro
je
c
t 
A
d
d
re
s
s
:

U
ti
li
ti
e
s
/H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
/E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t:
  
It
 i
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 c
lie
n
t 
o
r 
th
e
ir

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 l
ia
s
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 U
ti
lit
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
, 
H
ig
h
w
a
y 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
ls
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 u
n
le
s
s
 U
n
s
te
d

D
e
s
ig
n
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
s
tu
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a
c
t 
o
n
 y
o
u
r 
b
e
h
a
lf
.

C
o
p
y
ri
g
h
t:
  
T
h
e
 c
o
p
yr
ig
h
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 d
ra
w
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 o
f 
 U
n
s
te
d

D
e
s
ig
n
. 
It
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 c
o
p
ie
d
, 
a
lt
e
re
d
 o
r 
re
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
y 
fo
rm
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e

c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
o
f 
U
n
s
te
d
 D
e
s
ig
n
. 
It
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 a
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
th
e

w
ri
tt
e
n
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
o
f 
U
n
s
te
d
 D
e
s
ig
n
.

D
im
e
n
s
io
n
s
: 
 A
ll 
d
im
e
n
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 o
n
 s
it
e
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t

o
f 
a
n
y
 w
o
rk
. 
D
o
 n
o
t 
s
c
a
le
 f
ro
m
 t
h
is
 d
ra
w
in
g
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
.

P
a
rt
y
 W
a
ll
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
: 
 I
t 
is
 t
h
e
 s
o
le
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 o
w
n
e
r 
o
r

th
e
ir
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 d
ra
w
 u
p
 a
n
y
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
n
o
ti
c
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h

th
e
 P
a
rt
y 
W
a
ll 
A
c
t.
 T
h
is
 d
ra
w
in
g
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
th
e

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry
.

R
e
v
is
io
n

0
0
2
P
A
R
K
E
R

1
2
5
5

C
R

J
A
U

 1
 :
 1
0
0

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 F
ro
n
t 
E
le
v
a
ti
o
n

3
 1
 :
 1
0
0

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 S
id
e
 (
L
e
ft
) 
E
le
v
a
ti
o
n

5
 1
 :
 1
0
0

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 S
id
e
 (
R
ig
h
t)
 E
le
v
a
ti
o
n

6

M
IS
S
 H
. 
P
A
R
K
E
R

2
2
 L
A
N
S
D
O
W
N
E
 C
L
O
S
E
,

R
O
M
S
E
Y
,

H
A
N
T
S
,

S
O
5
1
 8
F
Q
.

P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 F
L
O
O
R
 P
L
A
N
S
, 
3
D
 V
IE
W
S
 A
N
D

E
L
E
V
A
T
IO
N
S

P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 A
P
P
L
IC
A
T
IO
N

1
:5
0
 1
:1
0
0

1
1
th
 N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
2
0

 1
 :
 5
0

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 G
ro
u
n
d
 F
lo
o
r 
P
la
n

1
 1
 :
 5
0

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 F
ir
s
t 
F
lo
o
r 
P
la
n

2

3
D
 F
ro
n
t 
L
e
ft

4

Test Valley Borough Council - Southern Area Planning Committee - 12 January 2021

Page 57


	Agenda
	6 Information Notes
	7 20/01045/FULLS - 19.05.2020
	REFERENCE
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	DATE_REGISTERED
	DSP_NAME
	DESCRIPTIVE_LOCATION
	PROPOSAL
	DSP_COF
	DATE_PUB_EXPIRY
	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	2001_1001_-Proposed Block Plan
	2/0002


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	Sheets and Views
	1718-PP-300


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 4
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 5
	2001_1002_-Proposed Site Layout  & Roof Plan
	1/0003


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 6
	2001_3001_-Proposed Site Sections and Elevations
	20/3002
	2/0009
	1/3003


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 7
	2001_3002_-Proposed Site Sections
	2/3002
	2/0016


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 8
	2001_0002_-Topographical Survey
	1/0002


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 9
	Sheets and Views
	18168-BT4-A1-Custom
	OLE1
	OLE3



	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 10
	2001_3011_-Proposed Elevations Plots 1-4
	1/3004
	2/0010
	2/2006


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 11
	2001_3012_-Proposed Elevations Plots 1-4
	3/3006
	5/3004
	2/0011
	6/3002
	3/3007
	5/3005
	4/3002


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 12
	2001_2001_-Proposed Ground Floor Plots 1-4
	1/2000


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 13
	2001_2011_-Proposed First Floor Plots 1-4
	1/2002


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 14
	2001_3021_-Proposed Elevations Plots 5 & 6
	2/0012
	4/3006
	1/3005
	2/3004
	3/3010


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 15
	2001_2002_-Proposed Ground Floor Plots 5&6
	1/2007


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 16
	2001_2012_-Proposed First Floor Plots 5&6
	1/2008


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 17
	2001_3031_-Proposed Elevations Plots 7-9
	2/0014
	15/3005
	110/3005


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 18
	2001_2003_-Proposed Ground Floor Plots 7-9
	1/2003


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 19
	2001_3032_-Proposed Elevations Plots 7-9
	2/0015
	16/3004
	17/3004


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 20
	2001_2013_-Proposed First Floor Plots 7-9
	1/2006


	20_01045_FULLS SAPC Plan 21
	2001_6000_-View on Arrival
	1/6000



	8 20/02880/FULLS - 19.11.2020
	REFERENCE
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	DATE_REGISTERED
	DSP_NAME
	DESCRIPTIVE_LOCATION
	PROPOSAL
	DSP_COF
	DATE_PUB_EXPIRY
	20_02880_FULLS SAPC Plan 1
	20_02880_FULLS SAPC Plan 2
	20_02880_FULLS SAPC Plan 3
	20_02880_FULLS SAPC Plan 4




